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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of ta Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for the fiscal year ended Daober 31, 2008
Or
O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for the transition Period from to

Commission File Number: 000-50175

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 81-055151¢
(State of incorporation) (I.R.S. employer identification number)
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(214) 559-0300

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on which Registered
Common Units Representing Limited Partnership bdts NASDAQ Global Select Marke
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OFTHE ACT:
Title of Class
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities Act.  Yed No
X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or) Sftthe Act. Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastigs. YesX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ ocontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowtedig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “accelerated filergéaaccelerated filer and smaller reporting compamyRule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filel] Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer J Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the ActYes O No

The aggregate market value of the common units nelibn-affiliates of the registrant (treating mihnagers, executive officers and 10%
unitholders of the registrant as if they may bdiafés of the registrant) was approximately $6@8,283 as of June 30, 2008, based on $31.80
per unit, the closing price of the common unitsegg®rted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market on sdate.

Number of Common Units outstanding as of Febru&ry2209: 28,240,431

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive proxy statement for thgistrant’s 2009 Annual Meeting of Unitholderdo®held on May 13, 2009, are
incorporated by reference in Part Il of this FatfK. Such definitive proxy statement will be filedth the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent tember 31, 2008.




Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

PART I
ITEM 1.
ITEM 1A.
ITEM 1B.
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.
PART Il
ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.
ITEM 7.

ITEM 7A.
ITEM 8.
ITEM 9.

ITEM 9A.
ITEM 9B.
PART IlI
ITEM 10.
ITEM 11.
ITEM 12.

ITEM 13.
ITEM 14.
PART IV
ITEM 15.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BUSINESS

RISK FACTORS

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENT

PROPERTIES

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF UNITHOLDER

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED UNIHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARYDATA

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
OTHER INFORMATION

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNEE
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANIDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICE

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND GAS TERM:!

SIGNATURES

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16
16
25
25
26

26
28

28
35
36

36
36
36
37
37
37

37
37
37
38
38
40
43

F-1



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Dorchester Minerals, L.P. is a publicly traded Dedee limited partnership that commenced operationdanuary 31, 2003 upon the
combination of Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd., RepublayRity Company, L.P. and Spinnaker Royalty Comp#ri, Dorchester Hugoton was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership, and R#joiand Spinnaker were private Texas limited panghips. Our common units are listed on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market. American Stockrisfer & Trust Company is our registrar and tranafgent. Their address and telephone
number is 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038, (8987-5449. Our executive offices are located aB38ak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300,
Dallas, Texas, 75219-4541, and our telephone numk{gd4) 559-0300. We have established an Intemeésite at www.dmlp.néhat only
contains the last annual meeting presentation dimk o the NASDAQ website. You may obtain all cemt filings free of charge at the
NASDAQ website by clickin¢‘Real-Time SEC Filings.” We will provide electroniz paper copies of our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or current reportg=orm 8-K and amendments to those reports fitddroished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) free of charge uporitemirequest at our executive offices. In this regbe term “Partnership,” as well as the
terms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometimesadsas abbreviated references to Dorchester Mindr&tsitself or Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
and its related entities.

Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managem®, which is managed by its general partner cbester Minerals Management
GP LLC. As a result, the Board of Managers of Desthr Minerals Management GP LLC exercises effeatontrol of our Partnership. In this
report, the term “general partner” is used as dmeabated reference to Dorchester Minerals Managémi@. Our general partner also controls
and owns, directly and indirectly, all of the pantship interests in Dorchester Minerals OperatiRgahd its general partner, Dorchester
Minerals Operating GP LLC. Dorchester Minerals Gieg LP owns working interests and other propstiederlying our Net Profits
Interests, provides day-tbay operational and administrative services tonasaur general partner, and is the employer ahallemployees wt
perform such services. In this report, the termetaging partnership” is used as an abbreviatedeefe to Dorchester Minerals Operating LP.
Our wholly owned subsidiary, Dorchester Mineralgjisition LP has been and may continue to be usedvehicle through which we may
acquire oil and gas properties.

Our general partner and the operating partnerskiDalaware limited partnerships, and the genexghpr of our general partner and
Dorchester Minerals Operating GP LLC are Delawenééd liability companies. These entities and Bartnership were initially formed in
December 2001 in connection with the combinatiat ttcurred on January 31, 2003. Dorchester Misgeatjuisition LP is an Oklahoma
limited partnership, and Dorchester Minerals Aciisis GP, Inc. is an Oklahoma corporation that ssras its general partner. Both were
formed in September 2004 in connection with an eitipn of oil and gas properties that was consutechan September 30, 2004.

Our business may be described as the acquisitvameiship and administration of Net Profits Intesesstd Royalty Properties. The Net
Profits Interests represent net profits overridiogalty interests in various properties owned ey dperating partnership. The Royalty
Properties consist of producing and nonproducingenail, royalty, overriding royalty, net profits,daleasehold interests located in 573 cour
and parishes in 25 states.

Our partnership agreement requires that we dig&iquarterly an amount equal to all funds that @sive from the Net Profits Interests
and the Royalty Properties less certain expensgsemsonable reserves.

We intend to grow by acquiring additional oil aratural gas properties, subject to the limitatioasadibed below. The approval of the
holders of a majority of our outstanding commortsiis required for our general
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partner to cause us to acquire or obtain any dlretural gas property interest, unless the adgpnsis complementary to our business and is
made either:

» in exchange for our limited partner interests, uildhg common units, not exceeding 20% of the comomits outstanding afte
issuance; o

* in exchange for cash, if the aggregate cost ofamgyisitions made for cash during the twelve-mamtiod ending on the first to
occur of the execution of a definitive agreementlfi@ acquisition or its consummation is no moentth0% of our aggregate cash
distributions for the four most recent fiscal geast

Unless otherwise approved by the holders of a ritgjof our common units, in the event that we acggroperties for a combination of
cash and limited partner interests, including commuits, (i) the cash component of the acquisitionsideration must be equal to or less than
5% of the aggregate cash distributions made byPautnership for the four most recent quarters @nthé amount of limited partnership
interests, including common units, to be issueslich acquisition, after giving effect to such issie shall not exceed 10% of the common
units outstanding.

Credit Facilities and Financing Plans

We do not have a credit facility in place, nor de anticipate doing so. We do not anticipate inograny debt, other than trade debt
incurred in the ordinary course of our business. @utnership agreement prohibits us from incuriimdgbtedness, other than trade payables,
(i) in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate at amgrgtime; or (ii) which would constitute “acquisiti indebtedness” (as defined in Section 514
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedjder to avoid unrelated business taxable incfoméderal income tax purposes. We
may finance any growth of our business through &saipns of oil and natural gas properties by isguadditional limited partnership interests
or with cash, subject to the limits described abawe in our partnership agreement.

Under our partnership agreement, we may also fimanc growth through the issuance of additionalrgaship securities, including
options, rights, warrants and appreciation righith wespect to partnership securities from timértee in exchange for the consideration and on
the terms and conditions established by our gemparaher in its sole discretion. However, we mayissue limited partnership interests that
would represent over 20% of the outstanding limgadnership interests immediately after givingeeffto such issuance or that would have
greater rights or powers than our common unitsauitlthe approval of the holders of a majority of outstanding common units. Except in
connection with qualifying acquisitions, we do eatrently anticipate issuing additional partnerséggurities. We have an effective registra
statement on Form S-4 registering 5,000,000 comumits that may be offered and issued by the Pastiyefrom time to time in connection
with asset acquisitions or other business comhindtiansactions. At present, none of the 5,000,006 have been issued.

Regulation

Many aspects of the production, pricing and manketf crude oil and natural gas are regulated degri@ and state agencies. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is uncanrstant review for amendment or expansion, whetjuently increases the regulatory bur
on affected members of the industry.

Exploration and production operations are sub@ettrious types of regulation at the federal, staig local levels. Such regulation
includes:
» permits for the drilling of wells
* bonding requirements in order to drill or operatsisy
» the location and number of wel
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» the method of drilling and casing wel

» the surface use and restoration of properties wdooh wells are drilled

» the plugging and abandonment of we

* numerous federal and state safety requirem

* environmental requirement

» property taxes and severance taxes;

» specific state and federal income tax provisit

Oil and natural gas operations are also subjecatious conservation laws and regulations. Thegelations govern the size of drilling

and spacing units or proration units and the dgmditvells that may be drilled and the unitizatmmpooling of oil and natural gas properties
addition, state conservation laws establish a maxirallowable production from oil and natural gadlsvérhese state laws also generally

prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas angpose certain requirements regarding the ratgtofiproduction. These regulations can limit
the amount of oil and natural gas that the opesatbour properties can produce.

The transportation of natural gas after sale byaipes of our properties is sometimes subjectgolation by state authorities. The
interstate transportation of natural gas is sulipéderal governmental regulation, including degian of tariffs and various other matters, by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Customers and Pricing

The pricing of oil and natural gas sales is prifyadetermined by supply and demand in the markegpénd can fluctuate considerably.
As a royalty owner and non-operator, we have exgtgimited access to timely information, involvemeand operational control over the
volumes of oil and natural gas produced and sotiithe terms and conditions on which such volumesyaarketed and sold.

Since 2004 the operating partnership has sold ofos natural gas production to a Williams enfigurrently Williams Gas Marketing,
Inc.) on a daily market price basis using a yeadsgtract that will continue through October 200Beperating partnership frequently reviews
alternative gas purchasers. We believe that treedb®Villiams Power by the operating partnershipherloss of any single customer would not
have a material adverse effect on us due to aligenpurchasers.

Competition

The energy industry in which we compete is sublig@ttense competition among many companies, laotiet and smaller than we are,
many of which have financial and other resourcesigr than we have.

Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

Our operations do not directly involve the openadiorisks and uncertainties associated with dglfior, and the production and
transportation of, oil and natural gas. Howevermay be indirectly affected by the operational sigkd uncertainties faced by the operators of
our properties, including the operating partnershipose operations may be materially curtailedayksi or canceled as a result of numerous
factors, including:

» the presence of unanticipated pressure or irregjelain formations
* accidents

» title problems:

» weather conditions
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» compliance with governmental requirements;
» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm
Also, the ability of the operators of our propestte market oil and natural gas production depemdsumerous factors, many of which
are beyond their control, including:
» capacity and availability of oil and natural gastsyns and pipeline
» effect of federal and state production and trartsgion regulations
» changes in supply and demand for oil and naturs grad
» creditworthiness of the purchasers of oil and retgas.
The occurrence of an operational risk or unceryaimat materially impacts the operations of therapms of our properties could have a

material adverse effect on the amount that we vedei connection with our interests in productioonfi our properties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditimnesult of operations.

In accordance with customary industry practicespvantain insurance against some, but not allhefrisks to which our business
exposes us. While we believe that we are reasonmadlyed against these risks, the occurrence oharsured loss could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.

Employees

As of February 26, 2009, the operating partnerbhip 18 full-time employees in our Dallas, Texasceffand nine full-time employees in
field locations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business

Current declines in oil and gas prices which accamipd the recent economic downturn could have areis@ impact on our results of
operations, cash flows, and distributions.

Oil and gas prices can be volatile and are currdotV compared to the recent past. It is imposgiblpredict how long the prices will st
at this level, or if they will move up or down frotme current level. In periods of low oil and ga&@s, unrelated operators have been known to
slow or curtail development of oil and gas produetbn our properties, which could reduce or deladpction which we might otherwise
realize. Reductions in production volumes and desae in oil and gas prices directly reduce our flagls and distributions to unitholders.

Our cash distributions are highly dependent onaoil natural gas prices, which have historically beery volatile.

Our quarterly cash distributions depend signifibaah the prices realized from the sale of oil aindparticular, natural gas. Historically,
the markets for oil and natural gas have been il®ktd may continue to be volatile in the futwarious factors that are beyond our control
will affect prices of oil and natural gas, such as:

» the worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and redtgas;

» the ability of the members of the Organization efrBleum Exporting Countries and others to agreentbmaintain oil prices and
production controls
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» political instability or armed conflict in ¢-producing regions
» the price and level of foreign impor

» the level of consumer demar

» the price and availability of alternative fue

» the availability of pipeline capacit

» weather conditions

» domestic and foreign governmental regulations ardd; anc
» the overall economic environme

Lower oil and natural gas prices may reduce theuwarnof oil and natural gas that is economic to paedand may reduce our revenues
and operating income. The volatility of oil andural gas prices reduces the accuracy of estimétiesuve cash distributions to unitholders.

Terrorist attacks on oil and natural gas productifatilities, transportation systems and storagélifées could have a material adverse
impact on our business.

Oil and natural gas production facilities, trangation systems and storage facilities could beetgrgf terrorist attacks. These attacks
could have a material adverse impact if certairand natural gas infrastructure integral to ourrapens were interrupted, damaged or
destroyed, thus preventing the sale of oil andrahtias.

We do not control operations and development oRitwalty Properties or the properties underlying tet Profits Interests that the
operating partnership does not operate, which canigact the amount of our cash distributions.

As the owner of a fractional undivided mineral oyailty interest, we do not control the developnadrthe Royalty or Net Profits Intere
properties or the volumes of oil and natural gaslpced from them, and our ability to influence depeent of nonproducing properties is
severely limited. Also, since one of our statedifiess objectives is to avoid the generation of lated business taxable income, we are
prohibited from participation in the developmenboi properties as a working interest or other agpebearing owner. The decision to explore
or develop these properties, including infill drii, exploration of horizons deeper or shallowamtlthe currently producing intervals, and
application of enhanced recovery techniques wilinzgle by the operator and other working interestera/ of each property (including our
lessees) and may be influenced by factors beyondamtrol, including but not limited to oil and mal gas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonmditions.

Our unitholders are not able to influence or cdrttre operation or future development of the prapsrunderlying the Net Profits
Interests. The operating partnership is unablaftaénce significantly the operations or future elepment of properties that it does not
operate. The operating partnership and the otheemuoperators of the properties underlying the ANefits Interests are under no obligatiol
continue operating the underlying properties. Tperating partnership can sell any of the propetieterlying the Net Profits Interests that it
operates and relinquish the ability to controlrdhuience operations. Any such sale or transfer ralsst simultaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price. Our unitholderaot have the right to replace an operator.

Our lease bonus revenue depends in significantgathe actions of third parties, which are outsadeur control.

A significant portion of the Royalty Properties amdeased mineral interests. With limited exceijome have the right to grant leases of
these interests to third parties. We anticipateivdng cash payments as bonus
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consideration for granting these leases in mosamtes. Our ability to influence third parties’ tdens to become our lessees with respect to
these nonproducing properties is severely limigad those decisions may be influenced by factoysrimour control, including but not limit
to oil and natural gas prices, interest rates, btatg considerations and general industry and enanconditions.

The operating partnership may transfer or abandoopprties that are subject to the Net Profits letss.

Our general partner, through the operating parhigrenay at any time transfer all or part of thegerties underlying the Net Profits
Interests. Our unitholders are not entitled to vaeny transfer; however, any such transfer mgst@multaneously include the Net Profits
Interests at a corresponding price.

The operating partnership or any transferee magddraany well or property if it reasonably belietlest the well or property can no
longer produce in commercially economic quantitidsis could result in termination of the Net Prsfihterests relating to the abandoned well.

Cash distributions are affected by production atfieo costs, some of which are outside of our contro

The cash available for distribution that comes frmum royalty and mineral interests, including thet Rrofits Interests, is directly affect
by increases in production costs and other costsef these costs are outside of our controluitiog costs of regulatory compliance and
severance and other similar taxes. Other experditare dictated by business necessity, such #aglatditional wells in response to the
drilling activity of others.

Our oil and natural gas reserves and the underlyingperties are depleting assets, and there aréditions on our ability to replace them.

Our revenues and distributions depend in largegrathe quantity of oil and natural gas producednfiproperties in which we hold an
interest. Over time, all of our producing oil aratural gas properties will experience declinesradpction due to depletion of their oil and
natural gas reservoirs, with the rates of decliging by property. Replacement of reserves to taairproduction levels requires maintena
development or exploration projects on existingogrties, or the acquisition of additional propestie

The timing and size of maintenance, developmeeiptoration projects will depend on the market @siof oil and natural gas and on
other factors beyond our control. Many of the dedis regarding implementation of such projectsluding drilling or exploration on any
unleased and undeveloped acreage, will be madeiddyarties. In addition, development possibiitie the Hugoton field are limited by the
developed nature of that field and by regulatostrietions.

Our ability to increase reserves through futureugitions is limited by restrictions on our usecafh and limited partnership interests for
acquisitions and by our general partner’s obligatmuse all reasonable efforts to avoid unrelaigginess taxable income. In addition, the
ability of affiliates of our general partner to pue business opportunities for their own accouiittsowt tendering them to us in certain
circumstances may reduce the acquisitions preseéntear Partnership for consideration.

Drilling activities on our properties may not begoluctive, which could have an adverse effect amrdutesults of operations and financial
condition.

The operating partnership may undertake drillintivéies in limited circumstances on the propertigglerlying the Net Profits Interests,
and third parties may undertake drilling activit@sour other properties. Any increases in ourrkesewill come from such drilling activities
from acquisitions.
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Drilling involves a wide variety of risks, includirthe risk that no commercially productive oil @tural gas reservoirs will be
encountered. The cost of drilling, completing apérating wells is often uncertain, and drilling ceg®ns may be delayed or canceled as a
result of a variety of factors, including:

» pressure or irregularities in formatiot

e equipment failures or acciden

* unexpected drilling condition:

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm
» adverse weather conditions; &

» disputes with dri-site owners

Future drilling activities on our properties mayt he successful. If these activities are unsucogdsis failure could have an adverse
effect on our future results of operations andrfaial condition. In addition, under the terms o thet Profits Interests, the costs of
unsuccessful future drilling on the working intdrpsoperties that are subject to the Net Profiteriests will reduce amounts payable to us L
the Net Profits Interests by 96.97% of these costs.

Our ability to identify and capitalize on acquisttis is limited by contractual provisions and subgitd competition.

Our partnership agreement limits our ability tow@iog oil and natural gas properties in the futesgecially for consideration other than
our limited partnership interests. Because of ifmédtions on our use of cash for acquisitions andur ability to accumulate cash for
acquisition purposes, we may be required to attemeffect acquisitions with our limited partneysiterests. However, sellers of properties
we would like to acquire may be unwilling to taker dimited partnership interests in exchange faperties.

Our partnership agreement obligates our generéigrato use all reasonable efforts to avoid gemagatnrelated business taxable inca
Accordingly, to acquire working interests we wotlave to arrange for them to be converted into ddieg royalty interests, net profits
interests, or another type of interest that do¢égyanerate unrelated business taxable income. Phiries may be less likely to deal with us
than with a purchaser to which such a conditionldowt apply. These restrictions could preventrasfpursuing or completing business
opportunities that might benefit us and our unideos, particularly unitholders who are not tax-egeinvestors.

The duty of affiliates of our general partner teg®nt acquisition opportunities to our Partnerghlpmited, pursuant to the terms of the
Amended and Restated Business Opportunities Agrmeteriecordingly, business opportunities that cquddentially be pursued by us might
not necessarily come to our attention, which cdiabit our ability to pursue a business strategwoduiring oil and natural gas properties.

We compete with other companies and producerscigniaitions of oil and natural gas interests. Mahthese competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resoutias we do.

Any future acquisitions will involve risks that ¢dadversely affect our business, which our unileas generally will not have the
opportunity to evaluate.

Our current strategy contemplates that we may dhwaugh acquisitions. We expect to participateigtdssions relating to potential
acquisition and investment opportunities. If we siommate any additional acquisitions, our capitéitizeand results of operations may change
significantly, and our unitholders will not havestbpportunity to evaluate the economic, financial ather relevant information that we will
consider in connection with the acquisition, unlggsterms of the acquisition require approvalaf wnitholders. Additionally, our unitholders
will bear 100% of the dilution from issuing new corn units while receiving essentially 96% of tha&f@ as 4% of the benefit goes to our
general partner.
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Acquisitions and business expansions involve numeerisks, including assimilation difficulties, unidiarity with new assets or new
geographic areas and the diversion of managematt¢'stion from other business concerns. In additioe success of any acquisition will
depend on a number of factors, including the ahititestimate accurately the recoverable volumessdrves, rates of future production and
future net revenues attributable to reserves amgdess possible environmental liabilities. Ouien@and analysis of properties prior to any
acquisition will be subject to uncertainties anghgstent with industry practice, may be limiteds@ope. We may not be able to successfully
integrate any oil and natural gas properties tlabequire into our operations, or we may not aehsired profitability objectives.

A natural disaster or catastrophe could damage Iijes, gathering systems and other facilities $etvice our properties, which could
substantially limit our operations and adverselfeaf our cash flow.

If gathering systems, pipelines or other facilitieat serve our properties are damaged by anyalatisaster, accident, catastrophe or
other event, our income could be significantly inipted. Any event that interrupts the productigathering or transportation of our oil and
natural gas, or which causes us to share in sigmifiexpenditures not covered by insurance, caltdraely impact the market price of our
limited partnership units and the amount of casdilable for distribution to our unitholders. We dot carry business interruption insurance.

The vast majority of the properties subject tolle Profits Interests are geographically concergthtwhich could cause net proceeds
payable under the Net Profits Interests to be ingaddby regional events.

The vast majority of the properties subject toltet Profits Interests are all natural gas propettiat are located almost exclusively in
Hugoton field in Oklahoma and Kansas. Becauseisfg@ographic concentration, any regional eventduding natural disasters that increase
costs, reduce availability of equipment or supplieduce demand or limit production may impactribeproceeds payable under the Net Pr
Interests more than if the properties were moreyggahically diversified.

The number of prospective natural gas purchasefsrathods of delivery are considerably less thanlevotherwise exist from a more
geographically diverse group of properties. Assalte natural gas sales after gathering and corajare$end to be sold to one buyer in each
state, thereby increasing credit risk.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, mofctihe economic risk of the underlying propertepassed along to us.

Under the terms of the Net Profits Interests, wiltfuall costs that may be incurred in connectidgthuwhe properties, including overhead
costs that are not subject to an annual reimbunselingit, are deducted as production costs or expesduction costs in determining amounts
payable to us. Therefore, to the extent of themags from the burdened properties, we bear 96. ¥teaosts of the working interest
properties. If costs exceed revenues, we do netve@ny payments under the Net Profits Interéstsvever, except as described below, we
not required to pay any excess costs.

The terms of the Net Profits Interests providegeecess costs that cannot be charged currently bet¢heay exceed current revenues to be
accumulated and charged in future periods, whiehdcesult in us not receiving any payments unberNet Profits Interests until all prior
uncharged costs have been recovered by the opeptitership.

Damage claims associated with the production antiefang of our oil and natural gas properties couwffect our cash flow.

The operating partnership owns and operates gathseyistems and compression facilities. Casualgelsr damage claims from these
operations would be production costs under thederfithe Net Profits Interests and could adveraéfgct our cash flow.

8
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We may indirectly experience costs from repairaplacement of aging equipment.

Some of the operating partnership’s current worlkintgrest wells were drilled and have been prodysince prior to 1954. The 132-mile
Oklahoma gas pipeline gathering system was orilyifastalled in or about 1948 and because of itsiagn need of periodic repairs and
upgrades. Should major components of this systeuine significant repairs or replacement, the ofeggpartnership may incur substantial
capital expenditures in the operation of the Okiahgroperties, which, as production costs, woulllice our cash flow from these properties.

Our cash flow is subject to operating hazards antbreseen interruptions for which we may not bl finisured.

Neither we nor the operating partnership are fungured against certain risks, either because isiscitance is not available or because of
high premium costs. Operations that affect the @rigs are subject to all of the risks normallyidienit to the oil and natural gas business,
including blowouts, cratering, explosions and padln and other environmental damage, any of whakiatresult in substantial decreases in
the cash flow from our overriding royalty intereatsd other interests due to injury or loss of lfamage to or destruction of wells, production
facilities or other property, clean-up responsiigiti, regulatory investigations and penalties argpension of operations. Any uninsured costs
relating to the properties underlying the Net Redfinterests will be deducted as a production icosalculating the net proceeds payable to us.

Governmental policies, laws and regulations cowgidhan adverse impact on our business and casfibdigsons.

Our business and the properties in which we hdktésts are subject to federal, state and loca &wd regulations relating to the oil and
natural gas industry as well as regulations regattinsafety matters. These laws and regulationdaga a significant impact on production and
costs of production. For example, both Oklahomaléaasas, where properties that are subject to #idPkofits Interests are located, have the
ability, directly or indirectly, to limit productio from those properties, and such limitations argfes in those limitations could negatively
impact us in the future.

As another example, Oklahoma regulations curreetiyire administrative hearings to change the aanagon of the operating
partnership’s gas production wells from one welldach 640 acres in the Guymon-Hugoton field. Presly, certain interested parties have
sought regulatory changes in Oklahoma for “infithy’increased density, drilling similar to that wfniis available in Kansas, which allows one
well for each 320 acres. Should Oklahoma changexisting regulations to readily permit infill drilg, it is possible that a number of
producers will commence increased density drillimgreas adjacent to the properties in Oklahomiatteasubject to the Net Profits Interest:
the operating partnership or other operators ofppoperties do not do the same, our productionl$ensdating to these properties may decrease,
or mineral owners may demand increased densitingrilCapital expenditures relating to increasedsity on the properties underlying the I
Profits Interests would be deducted from amounysbie to us under the Net Profits Interests.

Environmental costs and liabilities and changingiesnmental regulation could affect our cash flow.

As with other companies engaged in the ownershippgaduction of oil and natural gas, we always ekpe have some risk of exposure
to environmental costs and liabilities becausectigts associated with environmental compliancemrediation could reduce the amount we
would receive from our properties. The propertieshich we hold interests are subject to extenfgderal, state, tribal and local regulatory
requirements relating to environmental affairs,|theand safety and waste management. Governmauttadrities have the power to enforce
compliance with applicable regulations and permitsich could increase production costs on our pitiggeand affect their cash flow. Third
parties may also have the right to pursue leg@re&to enforce compliance. It is likely that exgiares in connection with environmental
matters,
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individually or as part of normal capital expendiyprograms, will affect the net cash flow from puoperties. Future environmental law
developments, such as stricter laws, regulatiomfrcement policies, could significantly increéise costs of production from our properties
and reduce our cash flow.

Our oil and gas reserve data and future net revesstenates are uncertain.

Estimates of proved reserves and related futureevenues are projections based on engineeringaddtaeports of independent
consulting petroleum engineers hired for that pagpd he process of estimating reserves requiregantial judgment, resulting in imprecise
determinations. Different reserve engineers mayentifferent estimates of reserve quantities arated|revenue based on the same data.
Therefore, those estimates should not be consasideing accurate estimates of the current magteéof our proved reserves. If these
estimates prove to be inaccurate, our businesshmaylversely affected by lower revenues. We asz#gtl by changes in oil and natural gas
prices. Oil prices and natural gas prices may e&pee inverse price changes.

Risks Inherent In An Investment In Our Common Units
Cost reimbursement due our general partner mayubstantial and reduce our cash available to digitéto our unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common sinite reimburse the general partner and its affdidor reasonable costs and expenses
of management. The reimbursement of expenses eowiersely affect our ability to pay cash distribas to our unitholders. Our general
partner has sole discretion to determine the amafutiiese expenses, subject to the annual linb®6fof an amount primarily based on our
distributions to partners for that fiscal year. Bmaual limit includes carry-forward and cabgek features, which could allow costs in a yei
exceed what would otherwise be the annual reimbugsélimit. In addition, our general partner argddffiliates may provide us with other
services for which we will be charged fees as deiteed by our general partner.

Our net income as reported for tax and financiakement purposes may differ significantly from cash flow that is used to determine ¢
available for distributions.

Net income as reported for financial statement pseg is presented on an accrual basis in confomitityaccounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America. UnithoKld tax statements are calculated based on agljdidax conventions, and taxable income
as calculated for each year will be allocated amamitholders who hold units on the last day of emaamth. Distributions, however, are
calculated on the basis of actual cash receipts)ges in cash reserves, and disbursements dudngldvant reporting period. Consequently,
due to timing differences between the receipt otpeds of production and the point in time at whiehproduction giving rise to those
proceeds actually occurs, net income reported orcansolidated financial statements and on unigokt1’s will not reflect actual cash
distributions during that reporting period.

Our unitholders have limited voting rights and dat control our general partner, and their ability temove our general partner is limited.

Our unitholders have only limited voting rights wratters affecting our business. The general padheur general partner manages our
activities. Our unitholders only have the rightatmually elect the managers comprising the Advig&mynmittee of the Board of Managers of
the general partner of our general partner. Ouhaolders do not have the right to elect the othanagers of the general partner of our general
partner on an annual or any other basis.

Our general partner may not be removed as our gepartner except upon approval by the affirmatiote of the holders of at least a
majority of our outstanding common units (includic@gmmon units owned by our general partner andffitiéates), subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions. Our general partner and itdia#s do not own sufficient common units to béeao prevent its removal as general partner,
but they do own sufficient common units to makergraoval of our general partner by other unithaddifficult.
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These provisions may discourage a person or gmaup &ttempting to remove our general partner oumegontrol of us without the
consent of our general partner. As a result ofaheevisions, the price at which our common umslé may be lower because of the absen
reduction of a takeover premium in the trading gric

The control of our general partner may be transéerto a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner has agreed not to withdrawntalily as our general partner on or before DecerBhe2010 (with limited
exceptions), unless the holders of at least a rityajofr our outstanding common units (excluding coamunits owned by our general partner
and its affiliates) approve the withdrawal. Howewbe general partner may transfer its generahpaitterest to a third party in a merger or in
a sale of all or substantially all of its assetthwiit the consent of our unitholders. Other thanestransfer restrictions agreed to among the
owners of our general partner relating to theieliests in our general partner, there is no reistniéh our partnership agreement or otherwist
the benefit of our limited partners on the abitifithe owners of our general partner to transfeirtbwnership interests to a third party. The
owner of the general partner would then be in atijposto replace the management of our Partnensfitipits own choices.

Our general partner and its affiliates have con8liof interests, which may permit our general partand its affiliates to favor their own
interests to the detriment of unitholders.

We and our general partner and its affiliates shemd therefore compete for, the time and effogeferal partner personnel who provide
services to us. Officers of our general partnerigmdffiliates do not, and are not required teergpany specified percentage or amount of time
on our business. In fact, our general partner tthgyato manage our Partnership in the best inteiour unitholders, but it also has a duty to
operate its business for the benefit of its pagn8ome of our officers are also involved in manag@ and ownership roles in other oil and
natural gas enterprises and have similar duti#iseim and devote time to their businesses. Becaese shared officers function as both our
representatives and those of our general partreeitaaffiliates and of third parties, conflictsinferest could arise between our general partner
and its affiliates, on the one hand, and us ommitholders, on the other, or between us or outhotders on the one hand and the third parties
for which our officers also serve management fuumsti As a result of these conflicts, our generdinga and its affiliates may favor their own
interests over the interests of unitholders.

We may issue additional securities, diluting ouithuslders’ interests.

We can and may issue additional common units aner @apital securities representing limited paghigr units, including options,
warrants, rights, appreciation rights and secwritiéh rights to distributions and allocations eiiguidation equal or superior to the securities
described in this document; however, a majoritthefunitholders must approve such issuance ihé)artnership securities to be issued will
have greater rights or powers than our common wni(g) if after giving effect to such issuancech newly issued partnership securities
represent over 20% of the outstanding limited paship interests.

If we issue additional common units, it will redumeér unitholders’ proportionate ownership inteii@stis. This could cause the market
price of the common units to fall and reduce theyrét cash distributions paid to our unitholddrsaddition, if we issued limited partnership
units with voting rights superior to the commontapit could adversely affect our unitholders’ wgtipower.

Our unitholders may not have limited liability inet circumstances described below and may be liablthe return of certain distributions.

Under Delaware law, our unitholders could be hietdlé for our obligations to the same extent asreegal partner if a court determined
that the right of unitholders to remove our gengeatner or to take other action under our partripragreement constituted participation in the
“control” of our business.

11



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

The general partner generally has unlimited ligbftbr the obligations of our Partnership, suchtaslebts and environmental liabilities,
except for those contractual obligations of outtfRaship that are expressly made without recourslee general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revigaeiform Limited Partnership Act provides that, @ndertain circumstances, a
unitholder may be liable for the amount of disttibo for a period of three years from the dateisfribution.

Because we conduct our business in various statesaws of those states may pose similar riskautainitholders. To the extent to
which we conduct business in any state, our urdérsl might be held liable for our obligations athéy were general partners if a court or
government agency determined that we had not cechplith that state’s partnership statute, or ifitdgof unitholders constituted participation
in the “control” of our business under that stafgstnership statute. In some of the states in vive conduct business, the limitations on the
liability of limited partners for the obligationd a limited partnership have not been clearly disthéd.

We are dependent upon key personnel, and the fess\dces of any of our key personnel could adlgraffect our operations.

Our continued success depends to a consideraldataxion the abilities and efforts of the senionagement of our general partner,
particularly William Casey McManemin, its Chief Exgive Officer, James E. Raley, its Chief Operatdficer, and H. C. Allen, Jr., its Chief
Financial Officer. The loss of the services of afithese key personnel could have a material adwedfsct on our results of operations. We
have not obtained insurance or entered into empdoyrmgreements with any of these key personnel.

We are dependent on service providers who assistthproviding Schedule K-1 tax statements tounitholders.

There are a very limited number of service firmat tturrently perform the detailed computations eelett provide each unitholder with
estimated depletion and other tax information ®isashe unitholder in various United States incdenecomputations. There are also very few
publicly traded limited partnerships that need ¢hesrvices. As a result, the future costs and tivegs$ of providing Schedule Ktax statemen
to our unitholders is uncertain.

Tax Risks
We have not received a ruling or assurances fran®S or any state or local taxing authority on angtters affecting us.

We have not requested, and will not request, aliggfrom the Internal Revenue Service, or IRSany state or local taxing authority
with respect to owning and disposing of our commpits or any other matter. It may be necessarggort to administrative or court
proceedings in an effort to sustain some or athoge conclusions or positions taken or expresged pand some or all of those conclusions or
positions ultimately may not be sustained. Ourhaiders and general partner will bear, directlynolirectly, the costs of any contest with the
IRS or other taxing authority.

We will be subject to federal income tax if we elessified as a corporation and not as a partnepsioir federal income tax purposes.

As stated above, we have not requested, and willegest, any ruling from the IRS as to our statua partnership for federal income
tax purposes. If the IRS were to challenge ourri@dacome tax status, such a challenge could résah audit of our unitholders’ tax returns
and adjustments to items on their tax returnsdahaunrelated to their ownership of our commonsunit addition, our unitholders would bear
the cost of any expenses incurred in connectioh aritexamination of their personal tax returns.
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If we were taxable as a corporation for federabime tax purposes in any taxable year, our incomiasglosses and deductions would be
reflected on our tax return rather than being phiseugh proportionately to our unitholders, and et income would be taxed at corporate
rates. In addition, some or all of the distribuanade to our unitholders would be treated as ehddncome without offset for depletion, and
distributions would be reduced as a result of duefal, state and local taxes paid by us.

The IRS could reallocate items of income, gainudgédn and loss between transferors and transfeocde®mmon units if the IRS does not
accept our monthly convention for allocating sugms.

In general, each of our items of income, gain, bosd deduction will, for federal income tax purpmdee determined annually, and one
twelfth of each annual amount will be allocatedhiose unitholders who hold common units on theBasiness day of each month in that year.
In certain circumstances we may make these allmtsin connection with extraordinary or nonrecigravents on a more frequent basis. As a
result, transferees of our common units may becatld items of our income, gain, loss and deducgatized by us prior to the date of their
acquisition of our common units. There is no specitithority addressing the utilization of this mad of allocating items of income, gain, loss
and deduction by a publicly traded partnership saschs between transferors and transferees afritsnon units. If this method is determined
to be an unreasonable method of allocation, owmirg; gain, loss and deduction would be reallocatedng our unitholders and our general
partner, and our unitholders may have more taxaloteme or less taxable loss. Our general partnautisorized to revise our method of
allocation between transferors and transfereeselisas among our other unitholders whose commats mtherwise vary during a taxable
period, to conform to a method permitted or requivg the Internal Revenue Code and the regulatomslings promulgated thereunder.

Our unitholders may not be able to deduct lossethatable to their common units.

Any losses relating to our unitholders’ common sinvill be losses related to portfolio income angiitiability to use such losses may be
limited.

Our unitholders’ partnership tax information may bedited.

We will furnish our unitholders with a Schedule Kak statement that sets forth their allocableeslofincome, gains, losses and
deductions. In preparing this schedule, we will wagous accounting and reporting conventions aribus depreciation and amortization
methods we have adopted. This schedule may nat giedsult that conforms to statutory or regulateguirements or to administrative
pronouncements of the IRS. Further, our tax retuay be audited, and any such audit could reswhiaudit of our unitholders’ individual
income tax returns as well as increased liabilitiesaxes because of adjustments resulting fragratidit. An audit of our unitholders’ returns
also could be triggered if the tax information tilg to their common units is not consistent whb Schedule K-1 that we are required to
provide to the IRS.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income o tagable loss with respect to their common ufitise IRS does not respect our method
for determining the adjusted tax basis of their owon units.

We have adopted a reporting convention that witlbd@ our unitholders to track the basis of thediviidual common units or unit groups
and use this basis in calculating their basis adfjeists under Section 743 of the Internal Revenude@md gain or loss on the sale of common
units. This method does not comply with an IRSngilihat requires a portion of the combined taxdatall common units to be allocated to
each of the common units owned by a unitholder upsale or disposition of less than all of the cammanits and may be challenged by the
IRS. If such a challenge is successful, our uniterd may have to recognize more taxable incomessrthxable loss with respect to common
units disposed of and common units they continueotd.

Tax-exempt investors may recognize unrelated bssitsexable income.

Generally, unrelated business taxable income, oFlIU&n arise from a trade or business unrelatede@xempt purposes of the tax-
exempt entity that is regularly carried on by eitthee tax-exempt entity or a
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partnership in which the tax-exempt entity is ampar. However, UBTI does not apply to interest meg royalties (including overriding
royalties) or net profits interests, whether thgatties or net profits are measured by productiobyogross or taxable income from the prope
Pursuant to the provisions of our partnership agee#, our general partner shall use all reasoreffoets to prevent us from realizing income
that would constitute UBTI. In addition, our gergrartner is prohibited from incurring certain tgp@nd amounts of indebtedness and from
directly owning working interests or cost bearintgrests and, in the event that any of our assetsrbe working interests or cost bearing
interests, is required to assign such interestise@perating partnership subject to the resematfa net profits overriding royalty interest.
However, it is possible that we may realize incdha would constitute UBTI in an effort to maximiaeitholder value.

Tax consequences of certain Net Profits Interestsiacertain.

We are prohibited from owning working interestxost-bearing interests. At the time of the creatibthe Minerals NPI, we assigned to
the operating partnership all rights in any suchkivig interests or cost-bearing interests that mégitosequently be created from the mineral
properties that were and are subject of the Miseaxt]. As additional working interests and othestdwearing interests are created out of such
mineral properties, they are owned by the opergiantnership pursuant to such original assignneerd,we have executed various documents
since the creation of the Minerals NPI to confinmels treatment under the original assignment. Teettnent could be characterized differently
by the IRS, and in such a case we are unable thgprevith certainty, all of the income tax consequoes relating to the Minerals NPI as it
relates to such working interests and other coatibg interests.

Our unitholders may not be entitled to deductiarspercentage depletion with respect to our oil avadural gas interests.

Our unitholders will be entitled to deductions tbe greater of either cost depletion or (if othaevallowable) percentage depletion with
respect to the oil and natural gas interests oviayags. However, percentage depletion is generabiylable to a unitholder only if he qualifies
under the independent producer exemption contam#uk Internal Revenue Code. For this purposén@ependent producer is a person not
directly or indirectly involved in the retail sabé oil, natural gas, or derivative products or tperation of a major refinery. If a unitholder does
not qualify under the independent producer exemptie generally will be restricted to deductionsdzhon cost depletion.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income @ tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS doésaccept our method of allocating
depletion deductions.

The Internal Revenue Code requires that incoma, ¢@8s and deduction attributable to appreciatedepreciated property that is
contributed to a partnership in exchange for angaship interest in the partnership must be alkxtab that the contributing partner is charged
with, or benefits from, gain or unrealized lossereed to as “Built-in Gain” and “Built-in Lossfespectively, associated with the property a
time of its contribution to the partnership. Ourtparship agreement provides that the adjustethasis of the oil and natural gas properties
contributed to us is allocated to the contribufiragtners for the purpose of separately determidamgetion deductions. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale of property contributedisowill be allocated to the partners that conteluthe property, in proportion to their
percentage interest in the contributed propertyake into account any Built-in Gain or Built-in & This method of allocating Built-in Gain
and Built-in Loss is not specifically permitted byited States Treasury regulations, and the IRS challenge this method. Such a challenge,
if successful, could cause our unitholders to racamore taxable income or less taxable loss amgoing basis in respect of their common
units.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income & tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogsiccept our method of determining
a unitholder’s share of the basis of partnershipperty.

Our general partner utilizes a method of calcutpgach unitholder’s share of the basis of partiestoperty that results in an aggregate
basis for depletion purposes that reflects thelmse price of common units
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as paid by the unitholder. This method is not djmadly authorized under applicable Treasury regjatss, and the IRS may challenge this
method. Such a challenge, if successful, couldecaus unitholders to recognize more taxable incomless taxable loss on an ongoing bas
respect of their common units.

The ratio of the amount of taxable income that ballallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ctmdt will be distributed to a unitholder
uncertain, and cash distributed to a unitholder may be sufficient to pay tax on the income wecalie to a unitholder.

The amount of taxable income realized by a unithioWdill be dependent upon a number of factors idiclg: (i) the amount of taxable
income recognized by us; (ii) the amount of anyngatognized by us that is attributable to specifiset sales that may be wholly or partially
attributable to Built-in Gain and the resultingoathtion of such gain to a unitholder, dependinghenasset being sold; (iii) the amount of basis
adjustment pursuant to the Internal Revenue Codaadne to a unitholder based on the purchase foicany common units and the amount
which such price was greater or less than a unigrtd proportionate share of inside tax basis ofa@sets attributable to the common units
when the common units were purchased; and (ivirtéthod of depletion available to a unitholder. Efere, it is not possible for us to predict
the ratio of the amount of taxable income that dlallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ¢hahwill be distributed to a unitholder.

A unitholder may lose his status as a partner afRartnership for federal income tax purposes ifiéreds our common units to a short se
to cover a short sale of such common units.

If a unitholder loans his common units to a sheltes to cover a short sale of common units, he beygonsidered as having disposed of
his ownership of those common units for federabine tax purposes. If so, the unitholder would mykr be a partner of our Partnership for
tax purposes with respect to those common unitagtine period of the loan and may recognize gaioss from the disposition. As a result,
during this period, any of our income, gain, lossleduction with respect to those common units wadt be reportable, and any cash
distributions received for those common units wdugdully taxable and may be treated as ordinacgrime.

If we are not notified (either directly or throughbroker) of a sale or other transfer of commonsirsome distributions and federal income
tax information or reports with respect to suchtamay not be provided to the purchaser or othandferee of the units and may instead
continue to be provided to the original transferor.

If our transfer agent or any other nominee holdiogmmon units on behalf of a partner is not timedyifred, and a proper transfer of
ownership is not recorded on the appropriate baokkrecords, of a sale or other transfer of comomts, some distributions and federal
income tax information or reports with respectiteste common units may not be made or providedettréimsferee of the units and may ins
continue to be made or provided to the originaisfaror. Notwithstanding a transferee’s failuredoeive distributions and federal income tax
information or reports from us with respect to thesits, the IRS may contend that such transferagoartner for federal income tax purposes
and that some allocations of income, gain, losgediuction by us should have been reported by saolferee. Alternatively, the IRS may
contend that the transferor continues to be a eaftr federal income tax purposes and that alionatof income, gain, loss or deduction by us
should have been reported by such transferorelfrdmsferor is not treated as a partner for fédiecame tax purposes, any cash distributions
received by such transferor with respect to thesfierred units following the transfer would be yuthxable as ordinary income to the transft

A sale or exchange of 50% or more of the totalregts in our capital and profits within a 12-momtériod could result in adverse tax
consequences to a unitholder.

We will terminate for federal income tax purpodethére is a sale or exchange of 50% or more ofdted interests in our capital and
profits within a 12-month period. A termination wduesult in the closing of our
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taxable year for a unitholder. As a result, if @hwider has a different taxable year than we hheemay be required to include his allocable
share of our income, gain, loss, deduction, creditsother items from both the taxable year engiigy to the year of our termination and the
short taxable year ending at the time of our teatiim in the same taxable year. A termination atsad result in penalties if we were unabl:
determine that the termination occurred.

Foreign, state and local taxes could be withhelcdharounts otherwise distributable to a unitholder.

A unitholder may be required to file tax returnsldre subject to tax liability in the foreign, statelocal jurisdictions where he resides
in each state or local jurisdiction in which we bassets or otherwise do business. We also maggoé@ed to withhold state income tax from
distributions otherwise payable to a unitholded atate income tax may be withheld by others omltgypayments to us.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report that are ndbfhital facts (including any statements concernilagns and objectives of managemen
future operations or economic performance, or apsioms or forecasts related thereto), are forwaaking statements. These statements can
be identified by the use of forward-looking termimgy including “may,” “believe,” “will,” “expect,”anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or
other similar words. These statements discussdigxpectations, contain projections of resultsperations or of financial condition or state
other forward-looking information.

”ou N ”ou ”ou

These forward-looking statements are made based mpmagement’s current plans, expectations, eggnassumptions and beliefs
concerning future events impacting us and, theegfiovolve a number of risks and uncertainties.dAfation that forward-looking statements
are not guarantees and that actual results coff&t diaterially from those expressed or impliedrie forward-looking statements for a number
of important reasons, including those discusse@utfdisk Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

You should read these statements carefully bedhegemay discuss our expectations about our fytaréormance, contain projections
our future operating results or our future finahciandition, or state other forward-looking infortian. Before you invest, you should be aware
that the occurrence of any of the events hereiordesl in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this mpould substantially harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition amat ipon the occurrence of any of these eventdrading price of our common units could
decline, and you could lose all or part of yourestment.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our office in Dallas consists of 11,847 square tddeased office space. The operating partnerswips a field office in Hooker,
Oklahoma and leases part of an office in Amarillexas.

Properties
We own two categories of properties: the Royaltyperties and the Net Profits Interests.

Royalty Properties

We own Royalty Properties representing producirgdjraanproducing mineral, royalty, overriding royalhet profits and leasehold
interests in properties located in 573 countiesartshes in 25 states. Acreage
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amounts listed herein represent our best estinba®sd on information provided to us as a royaltpewDue to the significant number of
individual deeds, leases and similar instrumentslired in the acquisition and development of the&tty Properties by us or our predecess
acreage amounts are subject to change as new etformbecomes available. In addition, as a royahyer, our access to information
concerning activity and operations on the Royattyperties is limited. Most of our producing propestare subject to old leases and other
contracts pursuant to which we are not entitledet information. Some of our newer leases provateaccess to technical data and other
information. We may have limited access to pubfitadn some areas through third party subscrigérmices. Consequently, the exact number
of wells producing from or drilling on the RoyaBroperties is not determinable. The primary maiyarhich we will become aware of

activity on the Royalty Properties is the receiptieision orders or other correspondence from afies or purchasers.

Acreage Summary

The following table sets forth as of December 30& a summary of our gross and net, where appicabres of mineral, royalty,
overriding royalty and leasehold interests, andragilation of the number of counties and parishresstates in which these interests are
located. The majority of our net mineral acreswarkeased. Acreage amounts may not add across dwetiapping ownership among
categories.

Overriding
Mineral Royalty Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 25 17 17 8 25
Number of Counties/Parish 464 19C 13€ 34 57:
Gross Acre 2,258,86! 616,58( 208,38t 33,51¢ 3,119,34
Net Acres (where applicabl 348,52: — — — 348,52:

Our net interest in production from royalty, ovdinig royalty and leasehold interests is based aseleoyalty and other third-party
contractual terms, which vary from property to prdp. Consequently, net acreage ownership in tbatgories is not determinable. Our net
interest in production from properties in which @xen a royalty or overriding royalty interest maydféected by royalty terms negotiated by
the mineral interest owners in such tracts and thssees. Our interest in the majority of thesgperties is perpetual in nature. However, a
minor portion of the properties are subject to 'eand conditions pursuant to which a portion ofiaterest may terminate upon cessation of
production.

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ108, the combined summary of total gross andwle¢ie applicable) acres of mineral,
royalty, overriding royalty and leasehold interésteach of the states in which these interestéoarged.

State Gross Net State Gross Net
Alabama 106,05¢ 7,797 Missouri 341 43
Arkansas 47,43¢ 15,42¢ Montana 281,89: 62,53¢
California 924 162 Nebraske 3,36( 257
Colorado 22,88( 1,42¢ New Mexico 42,41( 2,27¢
Florida 88,83: 24,24¢ New York 23,077 18,44(
Georgia 3,67¢  1,02¢ North Dakote 293,25. 36,93
Illinois 4,72¢ 88t Oklahomsa 230,88( 15,87:
Indiana 303 115 Pennsylvanii 9,511 4,65:
Kansas 13,98! 2,38% South Dakotz 14,40¢ 1,26¢
Kentucky 1,99¢ 55: Texas 1,637,83. 137,65t
Louisiana 131,12¢ 2,28¢ Utah 5,931 20C
Michigan 54,23 2,61 Wyoming 28,24¢ 1,057
Mississippi 72,02¢ 8,41
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Leasing Activity
We received cash payments in the amount of $441d0€@ifig 2008 attributable to lease bonus on 5lefeasnd 11 pooling elections in
lands located in 24 counties and parishes in ftaies. These leases reflected bonus payments gaupgito $850/acre and initial royalty terms
ranging up to 30%. Many of these leases contaiitiadel overriding royalty interests and provisidios optional working interest participation
in subsequent wells, back-in working interestsrgfyout or escalating royalty terms.

We received cash payments in the amount of $32J06@g the fourth quarter of 2008 attributablegade bonus on four leases of our
interests in lands located in five counties andspas in three states. These leases reflected Ipaynsents ranging up to $850/acre and initial
royalty terms ranging up to 30%.

The following table sets forth a summary of leaeed pooling elections consummated during 2006 gin2008.

2008 2007 2006
Consummated Leas

Number 51 107 76
Number of State 4 6 7
Number of Countie 19 27 33
Average Royalty 25.(% 24.1% 25.5%
Average Bonus, $/ac $ 39¢ $ 22z $ 52¢
Total Lease Boni—cash basi $441,00( $609,00( $7,377,00!

Three leases were granted for no bonus considerati®008, which reflected royalty terms rangingnfr22% to 30%. Average bonus
royalty terms reflected above include these theasés. Two leases were granted in 2008, whichdadld@in addition to royalty or bonus) an
overriding royalty interest, back-in working intster optional working interest participation. Aage royalty terms reflected above do not
reflect these additional interests. Amounts redcibove may differ from our consolidated finanstatements, which are presented on an
accrual basis. Average royalty and average boncisid amounts attributable to pooling electiongrRents received for gas storage, shut-in
and delay rental payments, coal royalty, surfageaggeements, litigation judgments and settlemetgeds are reflected in our consolidated
financial statements in various categories inclgdbut not limited to, other operating revenues atier income.

Net Profits | nterests

We own net profits overriding royalty interestsféreed to as the Net Profits Interests) in variptgperties owned by the operating
partnership. We receive monthly payments equalth§®% of the net profits actually realized by tipeiating partnership from these prope
in the preceding month. In the event costs exceeeinues on a cash basis in a given month for piepesubject to a Net Profits Interest, no
payment is made and any deficit is accumulatedcanged over and reflected in the following montb&culation of net profit.

We own five separate Net Profits Interests, fouwvbich were created in connection with the combdamain 2003 and one immaterial
deficit Net Profits Interest subsequently creafddee of these Net Profits Interests have beerconéinuous profit status other than temporary
deficits in that revenues have exceeded costs astid gayments have been made by the operating psniméo us each quarter. The purpose of
such Net Profits Interests is to avoid the paréitigm as a working interest or other cost-bearwger that could result in unrelated business
taxable income. Net profits interest payments atecansidered unrelated business taxable incomefgourposes. The fourth Net Profits
Interest, referred to as the Minerals NPI, hasioapusly had costs that exceed revenues. As ofBleee31, 2008, cumulative operating and
development costs presented in the following talléch include amounts equivalent to an interestrgh, exceeded cumulative revenues ¢
Minerals NPI, resulting in a cumulative deficit.|&umulative deficits (which represent cumulativeess of operating and development costs
over revenue received) are borne 100% by our geparaer until the
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Minerals NPI recovers the deficit amount. Onceriofip status, we will receive the Net Profits Irest payments attributable to these properties.
Our consolidated financial statements do not refietivity attributable to properties subject totReofits Interests that are in a deficit status.
Consequently, net profits interest payments, produton sales volumes and prices, and oil and gas reges set forth in other portions of

this annual report do not reflect amounts attributable to the Minerals NPI, which includes all of theoperating partnership’s Fayetteville
Shale working interest properties in Arkansas.

The following tables set forth cash receipts arstbdisements, production volumes and reservesiatifile to the Minerals NPI for the
calendar years 2003 through 2008.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Result
Year Ended December 31,
(in Thousands)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total
(11 mo.’
Cash received for reveni $ 4 $1,007 $1,447 $2,487 $3,25F $6,01€¢ $14,21¢
Cash paid for operating co 5 14¢€ 24¢ 452 521 858 2,22¢
Cash paid for development co 31€ 1,21¢ 1,08¢ 1,691 2,63¢ 5,68 12,62¢
Net cash (paid) receive $(B17) $(357) $ 112 $ 344 $ 99 $(520) $ (639
Cumulative NPI Defici $(674) $ (5662 $ (218 $ (119 $ (639

The revenue amounts, the production volumes, aagttved reserves presented include only propegrtducing revenue. The
development cost amounts pertain to more propetiges the properties producing revenue due to gndifferences between operating
partnership expenditures and oil and gas produetimhpayments to the operating partnership. Amaurttse above table include budgeted
capital expenditures of $905,000 at December 32820

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Production
Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total

(11 mo.,
Natural Gas mc 25¢ 138,39¢ 126,16° 190,90« 291,27¢ 418,74 1,165,74!
Oil & Condensate bk 101 5,01« 9,434 17,44° 19,66: 22,48( 74,13¢
Indicated Gas Price, $/m $392 $ 59 $ 737 $ 72 $ 658 $ 855 % 7.41
Indicated Oil/Condensate Price, $/I $2855 $ 36.08 $ 545¢ $ 61.08 $ 629 $ 1009t $ 71.1(C

The indicated prices set forth above are calculbtedividing each yeas’ gross revenues for each product by the produgthmme of the
corresponding product. Cash received for revenciedes minor amounts of non-product revenue. Satdulation does not necessarily reflect
contractual terms for sales and may be affectetidngportation costs, location differentials, giyadind gravity adjustments and timing
differences between production and cash receiptgiding release of suspended funds, initial payséar accumulated sales, or prior period
adjustments.

Minerals NPI Reserves
Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Proved Reserved

Natural Gas (mmcf 231 278 313 532 1,44: 1,99:
Oil & Condensate (mbbls 5 7 32 46 34 65
Future Net Revenues ($ in thousar@s) $90€ $1,35. $3,39¢ $4,30¢ $10,52: $9,34]
Standardized Measure ($ in thousar $61€ $1,03: $2,65F $3,40t $ 7,250 $6,53¢

(1) Allreserves are proved develop
(2) Based on year end pricing of oil and ¢
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Amounts in the above tables reflect the operatengnership’s ownership of the subject propertiest Rrofits Interest payments to us, if
any, will equal 96.97% of the cumulative net pfictually received by the operating partnershifbatable to the subject properties. The
above production sales volumes, indicated pricksno gas reserves, and financial informationitaitable to the Minerals NPl may not be
indicative of future results of the Minerals NPdamay not indicate when the deficit status may &mdl when Net Profits Interests payment
may begin from the Minerals NPI.

The Minerals NPI includes numerous opportunitigstie operating partnership to participate as &imgrinterest owner in drilling
activity on lands in which we owned a mineral oyalty interest as of the date such Minerals NPI erasted. Most of these opportunities are
evidenced by a contractual option, but not thegattion, to participate in activity located in defthlands and leases, although some arise by
non-contractual means or by operation of law. ikttpard to the opportunities evidenced by a contedaption, the operating partnership’s
decision to exercise these options and participai@ working interest owner is made on a well-byi-basis and only in the event a third party
proposes to drill a well subject to the contractyation. With regard to the opportunities to papite as a working interest owner that arise
non-contractually or by operation of law, we obtarmare provided those opportunities due to thmastof persons that we do not control.
Thus, we are unable to project when wells may bkedy whether the operating partnership may efegarticipate, or otherwise end up
participating, in such drilling or the magnitudetbé corresponding investment, either individuallyin the aggregate, with respect to the
Minerals NPI. In the event the operating partngrsties elect to participate pursuant to these gtior otherwise ends up so participating per
force of certain non-contractual relationships pobperation of law, the Minerals NPI deficit iseily to increase. Regardless of the operating
partnership’s future voluntary or involuntary peipation, we believe net profits interest paymeiftany, made upon the Minerals NPI’s first
reaching profit status will be minimal as developnef these properties, and consequently the dpgrpartnershigs payments of developmi
expenditures associated therewith, is likely toticare for at least five years. See the discussiatet“Drilling Activity” below for additional
information on some of these working interest p#ptition options and possibilities.

Acreage Summary

The following tables set forth, as of DecemberZI08, information concerning properties owned l®/dperating partnership and sub
to the Net Profits Interests, including the MinerBllPl properties. Acreage amounts listed under$ebald” reflect gross acres leased by the
operating partnership and the working interestesfiiaet acres) in those properties. Acreage amdisted under “Mineralteflect gross acres
which the operating partnership owns a minerak@gtand the undivided mineral interest (net adreftjose properties. The operating
partnerships interest in these properties may be unleaseskdeay others or a combination thereof. Acreageuaiisamay not add across dut
overlapping ownership among categories.

Mineral Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 11 1 6 12
Number of Counties/Parish 58 1 13 64
Gross Acres 47,58¢ 64C 109,54 157,76¢
Net Acres 5,37( — 83,86¢ 89,23¢

The following table reflects the states in which #treage amounts listed above are located.

Mineral/Royalty Leasehold Total

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Oklahoma 10,88( 93¢t 79,86 74,03 90,741 74,96¢
Kansas 64C 20 7,03t 7,03¢ 7,67¢ 7,05¢
Arkansas 67¢ 30¢ 19,78 2,630 20,46¢ 2,94t
All Others 36,02¢ 4,107 2,86( 162 38,88t  4,26¢
Totals 48,22¢ 5,37( 109,54: 83,86 157,76¢ 89,23¢
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The operating partnership owns working interesteva¢he currently producing horizons in 47,360 gfd$,960 net acres in Texas
County, Oklahoma. The operating partnership has fime to time farmed out its leasehold interestgdrtions of these lands, reserving an
overriding royalty interest therein, and will cotesi additional exploration or development of thiesels as circumstances warrant. The
leasehold acreage includes all of the acreageeifrdlyetteville Shale properties of Arkansas in Whie have the right to participate.

Costs Incurred

The following table sets forth information regamglit00% of the costs incurred on a cash basis bgpkeating partnership during the
periods indicated in connection with the propertiaderlying the Net Profits Interests.

Years ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Acquisition costs $ — $ — $ —
Development cost® 5,79¢ 3,821 1,96:
Total $5,79¢ $3,821 $1,96:

(1) The years ended December 31, 2006, 2007 and 26R&i&é$1,691,000, $2,647,000 and $5,698,000, réispheg attributable to NPIs not yet in pay status.

Productive Well Summary

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ108, the combined number of producing wells orptteperties subject to the Net
Profits Interests, including the Minerals NPI. Grogells refer to wells in which a working interesbwned. Net wells are determined by
multiplying gross wells by the working interesttivose wells.

Productive
Wells/Units (1)
Location Gross Net
Oklahoma 20C 120.t
Kansas 20 20.C
All others 17& 9.€
Total 39t 150.1

(1) Multiple well units operated by someone other ttt@noperating partnership and in which we own Nefi® Interests are included as one gross \

Drilling Activity

We received division orders for or otherwise idedi 423 new wells completed on our Royalty Praperin 10 states during 2008. Forty-
two new wells were completed and we identifiedvgells that were completed in prior years on our Rieffits Interests properties, all located
in five states during 2008, with 21 additional wseh various stages of drilling or completion opienas at year-end. Selected new wells and the
royalty interests owned by us and the working agicrevenue interests owned by the operating pafieare summarized below.
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This table does not include wells drilled in they€ieville Shale trend as they are detailed inlsssquent discussion and table.

DMLP
DMOLP Test Rates per day
NRI
ST County/Parish Operator Well Name @ wi @ NRI @ Gas, mcl Qil, bbls
AR Logan Highland Oil & Gas Gregory #-20 6.25%  6.25% 5,99¢
AR Logan Highland Oil & Gas Gregory #.-20 6.25% 6.282%  4,39%(
AR Logan Highland Oil & Gas Morris #1-20 6.25% 6.28%  3,02¢
MT Richland XTO Energy Childers 24>-11 6.27% 4.3% 33C
ND Mountrail EOG Resource Risan #-34H 6.97% 6.97% 30¢ 817
OK Ellis Crusader Energ Raiders #-27H 3.7%  9.06% 732 19z
OK Roger Mills  ConocoPhillips Ashley #¢-5 1.87% 4,901
TX Hidalgo El Paso E & P Cc Coates 38 6.42% 1,821
TX Hidalgo El Paso E & P Cc Coates +39 6.42% 9,821
TX Hidalgo El Paso E & P Cc Coates +41 6.3¢% 1,57
TX Hidalgo El Paso E & P Cc Coates +42 6.38% 1,671
TX Hidalgo Dan A. Hughes Cc Coates Dorchest“B” #1 6.25% 10% 8.2% 1,23
TX Jacksor Chesapeake Operatil Kubecka #: 3.7¢% 4,73¢
TX JimHogg  Safari Production Co. In Tommy R. Funk #: 10.2%% 1,30C
TX Starr Milagro Exploration Cleopatra #¢ 1.65% 7,08t
TX Starr El Paso E & P Cc Cow Creek Corp. # 10.24% 14,81
TX Starr Ascent Operatini Garza Hitchcock #1 2.65% 10,34¢
TX Starr El Paso E & P Cc Guerra- USA“D” #16 8.1<% 5,857
TX Starr El Paso E & P Cc Guerra- USA“D” #15 8.1% 2,08¢

(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapiartnership and subject to the Net Profits Irste

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&utaoyalty interest or to the operating partney’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Net Profits Interes

Additional information concerning selected recesthvty is summarized below:

Fayetteville Shale Trend of Northern ArkansasVe own varying undivided perpetual mineral intéseetaling 23,336/11,464 gross/net
acres located in Cleburne, Conway, Faulkner, Frapkbhnson, Pope, Van Buren, and White countielsadsas in an area commonly referred
to as the “Fayetteville Shale” trend of the ArkoBesin. One hundred twenty-nine wells have been panon the lands as of December 31,
2008, of which the operating partnership has agrést in 86. In total, 106 wells had been spudh@bbeen completed as producers and 20
were in various stages of drilling or completioremations. Wells that have been proposed to besdrilly the operator but for which permits
have not yet been issued by the Arkansas Oil & Gaamission are not reflected in this number. Addéaest results for wells completed in
2008, along with ownership interests owned by usiaterests owned by the operating partnershipestitp the Minerals NPI, are summarized
in the following table.

DMLP
DMOLP Gas Test Rate
NRI

County Operator Well Name @) wi @ NRI @) Mcf per day
Conway SEECC Green Bay Packaging-15 #4-29H30 2.09% 1.96¢% 1.502% 5,09z
Conway SEECC Jerome Carr-15 #:-31H 2.18% 3.79¢% 2.84% 3,84
Conway SEECC Polk ¢-15 #:-30H 5.93(% 5.561% 4.24%% 4,17:
Conway SEECC Salinas, Reyes-15 #1-20H 1.504% 0.00(% 0.00(% 5,42¢
Van Buren SEECC Crow 1(-15 #4-28H33 0.00(% 5.306% 5.285% 2,88
Van Buren SEECC Handy 1(-12 #1-18H 2.971% 6.34%% 4.75¢% 2,392
Van Buren SEECC Handy 1(-12 #z-18H 2.971% 6.34%% 4.75¢% 3,32¢
Van Buren SEECC Howard Family Trust 1-12 #1-9H 2.34% 4.37"% 3.281% 2,57¢
Van Buren SEECC Kenneth Williams 1-15 #1-25H 1.56:% 1.25(% 0.93¢% 3,511
Van Buren SEECC Love 1(-12 #:-17H16 3.442% 5.052% 3.79% 1,61¢
Van Buren SEECC Robinson -13 #z-24H 1.786% 2.91% 2.19/% 2,614
Van Buren SEECC Rothwell ¢-12 #2-15H 1.952% 2.81% 2.10% 2,15
Van Buren SEECC Thacker -12 #1-21H 2.34% 4.37"% 3.281% 1,99¢

(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapiartnership and subject to the Minerals P

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&taoyalty interest or to the operating partney’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Minerals NPI
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Set forth below is a summary of all permitting Jldrg and completion activity through December 3008 for wells in which we have a
royalty or Net Profits Interest. This includes wgedubject to the Minerals NPI, which is currentiydeficit status.

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 200¢ 2008 Total
New Well Permits 1 2 11 36 18 26 14 21 12¢
Wells Spuc 0 1 9 33 12 17 21 13 10€
Wells Completec 0 1 5 23 10 17 12 17 85
Royalty Wells in Pay Statu3 0 0 0 6 5 8 1C 7 36

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated period.

Our estimated proved reserves as of December 88, #clude reserves attributable to our royaltgiiest in 70 wells totaled 1.37 bcf.
Proved reserves attributable to working interestsed by the operating partnership totaled 1.51irbdb wells. These estimates only include
wells for which test rates have been obtained.

Net cash receipts for the Royalty Properties atteble to interests in these lands totaled $1,80i® 2008 from 35 wells. Net cash
receipts for the Minerals NPI properties attriblgaio interests in these lands totaled $1,977,8@DD8 from 70 wells. Fourth quarter net cash
receipts for the Royalty Properties and the MireNiPI properties totaled $484,000 from 35 wells $489,000 from 68 wells, respectively.

Horizontal Bakken, Williston Basir-We own varying undivided perpetual mineral inteséetaling 70,390/7,602 gross/net acres located
in Burke, Divide, Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail and Vidims Counties, North Dakota. Operators activehia &rea include Continental
Resources, EOG Resources, Hess Corporation andhidar®il Company. There have been a total of 64syermitted on these lands as of
December 31, 2008 with 36 completed as producerall tases we have elected not to lease our Emdi#ot to pay our share of well costs,
thus becoming a non-consenting mineral owner. Atdingrto North Dakota law, non-consenting ownereiezthe average royalty rate from
the date of first production and back-in for tHeif working interest after the operator has recedel150% of drilling and completion costs.
Once 150% payout occurs, the working interest pglowned by the operating partnership and subjetttet Minerals NPI. Non-consenting
owners are not entitled to well data other thanlipubformation available from the North Dakota lrstrial Commission.

As of December 31, 2008, three wells had achie@dd payout. One of these wells, the Risan 1-34kbdated in the Parshall field and
operated by EOG Resources. The well initially téstea rate of 817 barrels of oil and 308 mcf of gar day. Our independent reserve
engineers estimate gross ultimate reserves of @8MArrels of oil and 0.2 bcf of gas. At year-eimel éstimated remaining reserves were
279,000 barrels of oil and 0.1 bcf of gas. The afieg partnership owns a 6.97% net revenue intérahts well.

Set forth below is a summary of all permitting lldrg and completion activity through December 3008 for wells in which we have a
royalty or Net Profits Interest. This includes wsedlubject to the Minerals NPI, which is currentyai deficit status.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
2004 200¢  200¢  200i 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ Total
New Well Permits 2 1 0 15 8 16 15 7 64
Wells Spuc 1 1 0o 1 2 10 10 9 44
Wells Complete 1 1 0 7 5 4 12 6 36
Wells in Pay Statu€) 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 3

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated peri
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Bob West Field, Hidalgo County, TexadNe own varying undivided mineral interests in saléhousand acres in the Bob West Field
area of western Starr County, Texas. A portiorhisf &icreage has been leased and is currently epdvgtEl Paso Exploration and Production
Company. Recent development on these lands resuolsseral high rate wells that impacted our poiden volumes and reserves. The Cow
Creek Corporation #3 well was drilled to a deptti5f080 feet and completed in June 2008 with diainest rate of 14,812 mcf per day. Gr
ultimate gas reserves of 8.0 bcf have been assignihis well and we own a 10.24% net revenue @sielThe Guerra USA D #15 was drillec
a depth of 13,185 feet and completed in March 20i@8 an initial test rate of 2,088 mcf per day. Theerra USA D #16 was drilled to a depth
of 16,100 feet and completed in October 2008 witlnitial test rate of 5,857 mcf per day. We own8at9% net revenue interest in these w
As of December 31, 2008, one additional well wagingon completion and another location was peedit

Appalachian Basir—We own varying undivided perpetual mineral inteseéstapproximately 31,000/22,000 gross/net acrd®inountie
in southern New York and northern Pennsylvania.r@pipnately 75% of these net acres are located steem Allegany and western Steuben
Counties, New York, an area which some industrgpreports suggest may be prospective for gas ptiodufrom unconventional reservoirs,
including the Marcellus Shale. We continue to manitdustry activity and encourage dialogue wittlustry participants to determine the
proper course of action regarding our interestbimarea.

Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following table reflects the Partnersisiproved developed and total proved reserves, dutet revenues and Standardized Meast
December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008. The reserveliaurd net revenues are based on the reports afidependent petroleum engineering
consulting firms of Calhoun, Blair & Associates addddleston & Co., Inc. Other than those filed vihle SEC, our estimated proved reserves
have not been filed with or included in any repootany federal agency.

2008 2007 2006
Net Net Net
Profits Profits Profits
Royalty Interest Royalty Interest Royalty Interest
Properties @ Total Properties @ Total Properties @ Total
Proved reserve
Natural gas (mmci 32,02¢ 28,94¢ 60,977 29,55¢ 31,70( 61,25¢ 31,360 34,43t 65,79¢
Oil (mbbls) 3,51« 56 3,57(C 3,501 65 3,56¢€ 3,721 75 3,80z

Future net revenue

($, in thousands $ 269,99! $74,59¢ $344,59! $ 483,26: $121,50! $604,76! $ 344,89. $113,68. $458,57!

Standardized Measuf@)

(8, in thousands $ 138,10( $51,38¢ $189,48: $ 233,51 $ 82,85: $316,36° $ 169,26( $ 76,89¢ $246,15!

(1) Reserves, revenues and present values reflect®6®te corresponding amounts assigned to theatipgrpartnersh’s interests in the properties underlying the Nefiirinterests

(2) We do not reflect a federal income tax provisiarceiour partners include the income of our Parkigiis their respective federal income tax retu

Currently, proved oil and gas reserves means tiaed quantities of crude oil, natural gas, aatliral gas liquids which geological ¢
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable nerta be recoverable in future years from knowsergoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs dh@flate the estimate is made. Please see theaBldes the current definition of proved
reserves. However, the SEC recently adopted filasramending its oil and gas reporting requiresiede “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements—Note 6—Unaudited Oil and Natural GagResand Standardized Measure Information” for #aluthl information.

Title to Properties

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of agsets. Record title to essentially all our adsatsundergone the appropriate filings in
the jurisdictions in which such assets are locatéte to property may be
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subject to encumbrances. We believe that noneaf sncumbrances should materially detract fronvétee of our properties or from our
interest in these properties or should materiatgrifere with their use in the operation of ouribess.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oitaa regarding the use of natural gas from the virllesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly oviiyeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contributejor portion of the Net Profits
Interests amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007ingikés, for immaterial costs, dismissed with preijce all claims against the operating
partnership regarding such residential gas use€dDQ@aber 4, 2004, the plaintiffs filed severed claiagainst the operating partnership regarding
royalty underpayments, which the Texas County Ris€ourt subsequently dismissed with a grantroktto replead. On January 27, 2006,
of the original plaintiffs again sued the operatpagtnership for underpayment of royalty, seekilagg action certification. On October 1, 2C
the Texas County District Court granted the opegagiartnership’s motion for summary judgment firgdito royalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pléfiatmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. At present, the litigation
awaits result of the appeal to the Oklahoma Supi@met. An adverse appellate decision could redueunts we receive from the Net Pro
Interests.

The Partnership and the operating partnershipnagied in other legal and/or administrative pratiags arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesigmificant effect on financial position
or operating results.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF UNITHOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of unitholdlensng the fourth quarter of the year ended Decerhe2008.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND ISS UER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common units began trading on the NASDAQ Natidarket (now the NASDAQ Global Select Market) leebruary 3, 2003. The
following summarizes the high and low sales infaiiorafor the common units for the period indicat&tie information below reflects inter-
dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-dowrcommission and may not necessarily represent ataredactions.

2008 2007

High Low High Low
First Quartel $22.0( $18.7(C $23.1( $20.52
Second Quarte $36.4¢ $20.6¢ $24.0¢ $21.27
Third Quartel $35.8¢ $19.2¢ $24.0¢ $18.5(
Fourth Quarte $24.0( $14.8( $23.4¢ $19.0¢

As of December 31, 2008, there were 12,146 comnnithalders.

Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003ggsired by our partnership agreement, we disteithand will continue to distribute,
on a quarterly basis, within 45 days of the enthefquarter, all of our available cash. Availakdstit means all cash and cash equivalents on
hand at the end of that quarter, less any amoucdsif reserves that our general partner deternsimesessary or appropriate to provide for
conduct of its business or to comply with appliealalws or agreements or obligations to which we begubject.

Unitholder cash distributions per common unit fog past four years have been:

Per Unit Amount

2008 2007 2006 2005
First Quarte! $0.57230I $0.46114i $0.72985: $0.48124;
Second Quarte $0.76920! $0.47374! $0.77812 $0.51454.
Third Quartel $0.94847. $0.56050: $0.51608: $0.57728
Fourth Quarte $0.54208: $0.51462! $0.47859! $0.80554.

These distributions were paid on 28,240,431 uRibsirth quarter distributions are paid in Februdrthe following calendar year to
unitholders of record in January or February ohsiatlowing year. The partnership agreement reguihe next cash distribution to be paid by
May 15, 2009.

Please see “Fourth Quarter 2008 Distribution Ineiddrice” discussion contained in “Item 7.— Managet's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsiguidity and Capital Resources —Distributions” fonduction periods and cash receipts
and weighted average prices corresponding to tintHf@uarter 2008 distribution.

26



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofammmon units with the performance of the NASDAQr@wosite Index (the
“NASDAQ Index”) and a peer group index from DecemBg, 2003, through December 31, 2008. The graphrass that at the beginning of
the period, $100 was invested in each of (1) oamroon units, (2) the NASDAQ Index, and (3) the pgmup, and that all distributions or
dividends were reinvested. We do not believe thgtpublished industry or line-dfusiness index accurately reflects our businessorsingly,
we have created a special peer group index camgisficompanies whose royalty trust units are plptraded on the New York Stock
Exchange. Our peer group index includes the ufitseofollowing companies: Cross Timbers Royaltydir Mesa Royalty Trust, Sabine
Royalty Trust, Permian Basin Royalty Trust, HugoRwyalty Trust and the San Juan Basin Royalty Trust

G0-Month Cumulative Total Returns
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
Basis of Presentation
This table should be read in conjunction with thasolidated financial statements and related rintdgded elsewhere in this document.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per unit data)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Total operating revenut $ 89,92¢ $ 65,36¢ $ 74,927 $ 79,83: $ 57,02¢
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 14,73¢ 15,567 18,47( 20,85¢ 20,79t
Net earnings (loss 66,78: 43,04¢ 50,21( 52,77t 30,07¢
Net earnings (loss) per ui 2.3C 1.4¢ 1.72 1.82 1.07
Cash distribution$) 81,64¢ 57,40! 82,29t 58,02¢ 47,70:
Cash distributions per uri# 2.8C 1.97 2.8¢ 2.0C 1.7C
Total asset 139,56: 154,25: 168,42¢ 200,83( 206,17:
Total liabilities 98C 804 62¢ 94& 1,03t
Partner’ capital 138,58: 153,44 167,80( 199,88! 205,13t

(1) Because of depletion (which is usually highrethie early years of production), a portion of gwdistribution of revenues from properties représenreturn of a limited partner’s
original investment. Until a limited partner recesvcash distributions equal to his original invesitmin certain circumstances, 100% of such distidms may be deemed to be a return
of capital. Cash distributions by year excludeftheth quarter distribution declared in Januaryhef following year, but include the prior year ftiuquarter distribution declared in
January of the current yei

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2008 Overview
2008 was a strong year for us, both financially apdrationally. Significant results include theldaling:

* Netincome of $66.8 millior

» Distributions of $79.2 million to our limited pa#rs;

» ldentified 423 new wells located on our Royalty gadies in 10 state

« Identified 48 new wells located on our Net Profiteerest Properties in five states; ¢

 Consummated 62 leases of our mineral interestdewsloped properties located in 24 counties andlpes in four state:

Critical Accounting Policies

We utilize the full cost method of accounting foists related to our oil and gas properties. Undermethod, all such costs are
capitalized and amortized on an aggregate basistbgestimated lives of the properties using thiéseof-production method. These
capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling tesydweer, which limits such pooled costs to the agate@f the present value of future net revenues
attributable to proved oil and gas reserves distmbat 10% plus the lower of cost or market valuenproved properties. Our Partnership did
not assign any book or market value to unproveggntes, including nonproducing royalty, mineratldeasehold interests. The full cost
ceiling is evaluated at the end of each quarternémeh events indicate possible impairment. No impants have been recorded since 2003.

The discounted present value of our proved oilgesireserves is a major component of the ceilifguzion and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aeeémts based on engineering and

28



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

geological analyses. Different reserve engineens mach different conclusions as to estimated dtiesibf natural gas or crude oil reserves
based on the same information. Our reserve estingaeprepared by independent consultants. Thagasds time provides more qualitative
information regarding reserve estimates, and rengsare made to prior estimates based on upddtadation. However, there can be no
assurance that more significant revisions will m@thecessary in the future. Significant downwaxisiens could result in an impairment
representing a non-cash charge to earnings. Iniaddd the impact on calculation of the ceilingtieestimates of proved reserves are also a
major component of the calculation of depletion.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil gaslreserves that are included in the
discounted present value of our reserves are dbgdctletermined. The ceiling test calculation riegsi use of prices and costs in effect as of
the last day of the accounting period, which amegally held constant for the life of the propestids a result, the present value is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value of teserves. Oil and gas prices have historically vetatile, and the prevailing prices at any gi
time may not reflect our Partnership’s or the irtdds forecast of future prices.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepteth@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assush it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabifities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finamstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxg@enses during the reporting period. For
example, estimates of uncollected revenues anddieppenses from Royalty Properties and Net Préfierests operated by non-affiliated
entities are particularly subjective due to thebility to gain accurate and timely information. Tefore, actual results could differ from those
estimates. Please see “Item 1. Business—CustomérRricing” and “ltem 2. Properties—Royalty Propest for additional discussion.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadel&oard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Accountingristards No. 15Fair Value
Measurement(“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines fair value, estdimis a framework for measuring fair value, and egpatisclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS 157 also emphasizesthaafue is a market-based measurement, not éy-epecific measurement, and sets out
a fair value hierarchy with the highest priorityifge quoted prices in active markets. Under SFAS 1&i7 value measurements are disclosed by
level within that hierarchy. In February 2008, t#&SB issued FASB Staff Position 157Effective Date of FASB Statement No. (5P
157-2"), which permits a one-year deferral for ittplementation of SFAS 157 with regard to nonfiriahassets and liabilities that are not
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis. We adoptedSSE# for the fiscal year beginning
January 1, 2008 with no material impact on our obidated financial statements. We will adopt théaged portion for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized ordliised at fair value in the financial statementaaronrecurring basis beginning January 1,
2009. We do not anticipate a material impact onamnsolidated financial statements for this delgyedion.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofn€inhAccounting Standards 141 (revised 208I)siness Combinatiof{SFAS 141
(R)). SFAS 141(R), among other things, establigiteiples and requirements for how the acquirea business combination (a) recognizes
and measures in its financial statements the ffiillié assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,aay noncontrolling interest in the acquired
business, (b) recognizes and measures the goaxhgiliired in the business combination or a gain fadmargain purchase, and (c) determines
what information to disclose to enable users offit@ncial statements to evaluate the nature avahtiial effects of the business combination.
SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginnorgor after December 15, 2008, with early adopgiozhibited. We are required to adopt
SFAS 141(R) for all business combinations for whtoh acquisition date is on or after January 1920®e adoption will not have an
immediate impact on our consolidated financialestants.
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Contractual Obligations
Our office lease in Dallas, Texas comprises outrastual obligations.
Payments due by Perioc

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years

Operating Lease Obligatiol $1,505,00! $ 225,00( $465,00( $489,00( $ 326,00(

Results of Operations

Normally, our period-to-period changes in net eagriand cash flows from operating activities ameqjpally determined by changes in
oil and natural gas sales volumes and prices,@addsser extent, by capital expenditures deductddr the Net Profits Interests calculation.
Our portion of oil and gas sales volumes and weiglaiverage sales prices are shown in the follovahbg.

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Accrual Basis Sales Volume
Royalty Properties Gas Sales (mnr 4,002 3,62 3,94¢
Royalty Properties Oil Sales (mbb 301 30C 32¢
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales (mn 3,871 4,13 4,521
Net Profits Interests Qil Sales (mbb 12 16 15
Accrual Basis Weighted Averages Sales Pi
Royalty Properties Gas Sales ($/rr $825 $6.64 $ 6.4¢€
Royalty Properties Oil Sales ($/bl $96.02  $67.7¢  $59.8¢
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales ($/n $85¢ $66- $6.2¢
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales ($/b $98.7¢  $62.4C  $52.6¢
Accrual Basis Production Costs Deducted under the
Net Profits Interests ($/mcfé)) $18 $19¢ $ 157

(1) Provided to assist in determination of revenuepliep only to Net Profits Interests sales volumesgs.

Comparison of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Royalty Properties’ oil sales volumes decrease®#&@m 329 mbbls during 2006 to 300 mbbls durin@26ecause of significant
declines from anomalously high production ratetha T-Patch field during early 2006. Royalty Prdjgst oil sales volumes were virtually
unchanged during 2008 compared to 2007. Royaltpdtti@s’ gas sales volumes decreased 8.3% fron® 3y@dcf during 2006 to 3,623 mmcf
during 2007 and then increased 10.5% to 4,003 nadmdhg 2008. The changes in natural gas sales \edumere primarily attributable to
weather-related problems that negatively affectedipction in the first quarter and portions of #egond quarter of 2007 along with the results
of new drilling activity on the Royalty Propertidaring 2008 and to a lesser degree the contribuioratural gas liquids and plant products to
natural gas equivalent volumes.

Net Profits Interests properties’ oil sales volurmeseased 6.7% from 15 mbbls during 2006 to 16Ismbdbring 2007 and then decreased
25% to 12 mbbls during 2008, primarily due to aermpor’s adjustments to production from prior pdsioNet Profits Interests properties’ gas
sales volumes decreased 8.6% from 4,521 mmcf d@20§ to 4,133 mmcf during 2007 and subsequentlyedsed 6.2% to 3,877 mmcf in
2008 principally as a result of natural reservaiplétion in the Guymon-Hugoton field in Oklahoma.

Weighted average oil sales prices attributablé¢oRoyalty Properties increased 13.1% from $5968%pl in 2006 to $67.75 per bbl in
2007 and subsequently increased 41.7% to $96.08bém 2008. Royalty Properties’ weighted averggs sales prices increased 2.8% from
$6.46 per mcf during 2006 to $6.64 per mcf
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during 2007 and then increased 24.2% to $8.25 pédaring 2008. Weighted average Net Profits Indes@roperties’ gas sales prices
increased 5.6% from $6.28 per mcf during 2006 t&$@er mcf during 2007 and then increased 29.4$8168 per mcf in 2008. Net Profits
Interests properties’ weighted average oil saleeprincreased 18.5% from $52.68 per bbl duringg20062.40 per bbl during 2007 followed
by an increase of 58.3% to $98.76 per bbl in 2@08uch fluctuations resulted from changing mar&enditions. Additionally, natural gas
prices reflect a natural gas liquid payment readivethe second quarter of 2008 that related torpgrear production, and an additional amount
of approximately $2.3 million for 2008 productiananticipated to be received during the first qereof 2009. The accrued 2009 natural gas
liquid payment of $0.59/mcf is included in the $8r&cf for 2008. The natural gas liquids paymenéstarsed on an Oklahoma Guymon-
Hugoton field 1994 gas delivery agreement that isffect through 2015. Under the terms of the agesd, when the market price of natural
gas liquids increases sufficiently disproportiohate natural gas market prices, the operatingneaiship receives a portion of that increase in
an annual payment. In the event the evaluatioheaénd of the annual contract period shows the payto be determinable and collectable
revenue is accrued. Only immaterial amounts wegeived prior to 2007.

Our 2008 operating revenues increased 37.6% frdsyB8$6,000 during 2007 to $89,925,000 primarily assalt of increased oil and
natural gas prices during the 2008 summer montgalith a 2007 natural gas liquids payment reckthgring the first half of 2008 and an
accrued natural gas liquid payment expected duhadirst half of 2009. Our 2007 operating revendesreased 12.8% from $74,927,000
during 2006 to $65,365,000 primarily as a resuli@freased lease bonus revenue from 2006, whithded an unusual amount of lease bonus
income attributable to the Fayetteville Shale teation.

General and administrative (“G&A”) costs incread€d4% from $3,591,000 in 2007 to $3,965,000 in 2608 to increased costs related
to, among other things, increased number of urddrohccounts and ongoing modernizing of land recbetjun in mid-2007. G&A costs
increased 17.4% from $3,058,000 in 2006 to $3,381i0 2007 due to increased costs related to, artrgy things, increased number of
unitholder accounts, modernizing of land recordsl, autsourcing of royalty revenue processing aaisziduring mid-2006.

Depletion and amortization decreased from $18,4%Di0 2006 to $15,567,000 in 2007 and to $14,73BjA@008, primarily as a result
of a lower depletable base due to the effects @fipus depletion and upward revisions in oil ansl iggerve estimates. Cash flow from
operations and cash distributions to unitholdeesrart affected by depletion, depreciation and aizetion.

Net cash provided by operating activities decred$ed% from $72,783,000 during 2006 to $58,4328@M0ng 2007 due primarily to the
effects of the unusual amount of Fayetteville Sedese bonus during 2006 and the timing of caskipex Net cash provided increased 41.9%
to $82,908,000 during 2008 primarily due to incezheil and gas prices during the second and thiedtgrs along with abnormal gas liquid
payments. See discussion of operating revenuesdbowmore details.

Texas Margin Tax

During 2006, the Texas Legislature passed H.B.I8¢hvis a new tax system, commonly referred tdhasTiexas margin tax. The Texas
margin tax applies to corporations and limitedilighcompanies, general and limited partnershipsdéss otherwise exempt), limited liability
partnerships, trusts (unless otherwise exemptjnbss trusts, business associations, professigaatmtions, joint stock companies, holding
companies, joint ventures and certain other busieesities having limited liability protection. Tlefective date of the Texas margin tax was
January 1, 2008, but the tax generally will be isgzbon gross revenues generated in 2007 and ttegreaf

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirgading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioine from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas

31



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

margin tax as “passive entities.” We believe owutiaship meets the requirements for being consitiar‘passive entity” for Texas margin tax
purposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the $emargin tax. If exempt from tax at the Partnerdéel as a passive entity, each unitholder
that is considered a taxable entity under the Texag)in tax would generally be required to inclitdelexas portion of Partnership revenue
its own Texas margin tax computation. Such revemmsdd be sourced to the State of Texas under Texaptroller guidance that provides
such income is sourced according to the princifsdgpof business of the Partnership.

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisaiwegarding the requirements for filing stateoime, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital are our cash flaanfithe Net Profits Interests and the Royalty Priagger\We are not directly liable for t
payment of any exploration, development or produrctosts. We do not have any transactions, arraagesnor other relationships that could
materially affect our liquidity or the sustainabjliof capital resources.

Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreementannot incur indebtedness, other than tradelpes, (i) in excess of $50,000 in the
aggregate at any given time or (ii) which would stitnte “acquisition indebtedness” (as defined écthn 514 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended).

Our only cash requirements are the distributionalladur net cash flow to our unitholders, the pawytof oil and gas production and
property taxes not otherwise deducted from grosdyprtion revenues and general and administratigereses incurred on our behalf and
allocated in accordance with our partnership ageggnsince the distributions to our unitholders agedefinition, determined after the
payment of all expenses actually paid by us, thHg cassh requirements that may create liquidity @ns for us are the payments of expenses.
Since many of these expenses vary directly witlaiod natural gas prices and sales volumes, sugfodaction taxes, we anticipate that
sufficient funds will be available at all times foayment of these expenses. Of the expenses thadtd@ry with oil and gas prices and sales
volumes, most are reimbursements to our Generad&dor allocable general and administrative costhiding home office rent, salaries, and
employee benefit plans. Such reimbursements arergiinlimited to 5% of an amount primarily basedannual distributions to our limited
partners. Historically, all such reimbursementsehbgen substantially below the 5% limit establisbgdhe Partnership Agreement.
Consequently, even during the recent economic dawnbur business risks are essentially limitedistribution amount decreases. See “Iltem
1. Business—Credit Facilities and Financing Plageé “Iltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to ousiBess—Current declines in oil and
gas prices which accompanied the recent economiatdon, could have an adverse impact on our resfilbgperations, cash flows and
distributions.” and “Cash distributions are affett®y production and other costs, some of whichoatside of our control.” “See “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Inherent In An Investment In @emmon Units—Cost reimbursement due our generéhg@amay be substantial and
reduce our cash available to distribute to ourhatiters.” See “Notes to Consolidated Financialeéstents—Note 3—Related Party
Transactions.”

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangesrtbiat have or are reasonably likely to have sectiror future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedexpenditures or capital resources that are
material to unitholders.

Expenses and Capital Expenditures

During 2008 the operating partnership completedweléin the Oklahoma Council Grove formation atast of approximately $461,000.
The well initially produced 130 mcf per day andremtly produces 60 mcf per
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day of gas and 12 bbls per day of water. Also,rdu#i008 the operating partnership perforated acahngleted three wells in the Oklahoma
GuymonHugoton field at costs ranging from $29,000 to $02, Production rate increases per well were 20tmcf per day and 61 to 85 n
per day with one well unchanged.

The operating partnership plans to continue itsreffto increase production in Oklahoma by techesaiinat may include fracture treati
deepening, recompleting, and drilling. As shownwah@osts vary widely and are not predictable at e&fort requires specific engineering.
Such activities by the operating partnership canfldience the amount we receive from the Net Psdfiterests as reflected in the accrual basis
production costs $/mcfe in the table under “Re<uflt®perations.”

The operating partnership owns and operates this,vpibelines and gas compression and dehydraticititfes located in Kansas and
Oklahoma. The operating partnership anticipatedugbincreases in expenses as repairs to thediéidadiecome more frequent and anticip
gradual increases in field operating expensessasveir pressure declines. The operating partreidibes not anticipate incurring significant
expense to replace these facilities at this tinmes€ capital and operating costs are reflecteakiNet Profits Interests payments we receive
from the operating partnership.

In 1998, Oklahoma regulations removed producticangjty restrictions in the Guymon-Hugoton field atid not address efforts by third
parties to persuade Oklahoma to permit infill drdlin the Guymon-Hugoton field. Infill drilling add require considerable capital
expenditures. The outcome and the cost of suchitkesi are unpredictable and could influence th@am we receive from the Net Profits
Interests. The operating partnership believest has sufficient field compression and permitsvilacuum operation for the foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Working Capital
Year-end cash and cash equivalents totaled $1®@0 for 2008, $15,001,000 for 2007, and $13,927f60Q006.

Distributions

Distributions to limited partners and the generatiper related to cash receipts for the period f@ctober 2007 through December 2008
were as follows:

$ in Thousands

General
Per Unit Limited

Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount Partners Partner
2007 4th January 25, 200 February 4, 200 $0.51462! $14,53: $ 468
2008 1st April 21, 2008 May 1, 200€ 0.572301 16,16: 504
2008 2nd July 21, 200¢ August 1, 200¢ 0.76920! 21,72 63¢
2008 3rd October 20, 200 November 3, 200 0.94847. 26,78t 84z
Total distributions paid in 20C $79,20: $2,44¢
2008 4th January 26, 200 February 5, 200 $0.54208: $15,30¢ $ 52C

In general, the limited partners are allocated @%e Royalty Properties’ net receipts and 99%wfNet Profits Interests net receipts.

Net Profits Interests

We receive monthly payments from the operatingrgaship equal to 96.97% of the net proceeds agtuedllized by the operating
partnership from the properties underlying the Rigffits Interests. The operating partnership retéie 3.03% balance of these net proceeds.
Net proceeds generally reflect gross proce
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attributable to oil and natural gas production altjureceived during the month less production sastually paid during the same month.
Production costs generally reflect drilling, conmfua, operating and general and administrativescastl exclude depletion, amortization and
other non-cash costs. The operating partnershigeriad Profits Interests payments to us totaling $27,000 during October 2007 through
September 2008, which payments reflected 96.978taf net proceeds of $28,226,000 realized front&eaper 2007 through August 2008.
Net proceeds realized by the operating partnedinimg September through November 2008 were refteict Net Profits Interests payme
made during October through December 2008. Thegmgts were included in the fourth quarter distiilu paid in early 2009 and are
excluded from this 2008 analysis.

Royalty Properties

Revenues from the Royalty Properties are typiqadligl to us with proportionate severance (produgtiaxes deducted and remitted by
others. Additionally, we generally pay ad valoremes, general and administrative costs, and mackatid associated costs since royalties
lease bonuses generally do not otherwise bear e similar costs. After deduction of the abaescribed costs including cash reserves,
our net cash receipts from the Royalty Propertiggd the period October 2007 through Septembe8 2@€re $54,278,000, of which
$52,107,000 (96%) was distributed to the limitedners and $2,171,000 (4%) was distributed to #reegal partner. Proceeds received by us
from the Royalty Properties during the period Oetdiirough December 2008 became part of the fapr#nter distribution paid in early 2009,
which is excluded from this 2008 analysis.

Distribution Determinations

The actual calculation of distributions is perfodveach calendar quarter in accordance with ouneestip agreement. The following
calculation covering the period October 2007 thioBgptember 2008 demonstrates the method.

$ In Thousands

General
Limited
Partners Partner
4% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Proper $ — $2,171
96% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Propel 52,10% —
1% of Net Profits Interests Paid to our Partner: — 274
99% of Net Profits Interests Paid to our Partngr 27,09¢ —
Total Distributions $79,20: $2,44¢
Operating Partnership Share (3.03% of Net Proce — 85E
Total General Partner She $3,30(
% of Total 96% 4%

In summary, our limited partners received 96%, amdgeneral partner received 4% of the net caskrgésd by our activities and those
of the operating partnership during this periodeDathese fixeghercentages, our general partner does not havimegytive distribution right
or other right or arrangement that will increasepiércentage share of net cash generated by dwitiestor those of the operating partnership.

During the period October 2007 through Septemb8B20ur Partnership’s quarterly distribution paytseo limited partners were based
on all of its available cash. Our Partnership’sya@ignificant cash reserves that influenced quigrfgayments were $1,165,000 for ad valorem
taxes. Additionally, certain production costs unther Net Profits Interests calculation and a sipaition of management expense
reimbursements include amounts for which funds geteaside monthly to enable payment when due. Rbeanare pension contributions and
payroll taxes. These amounts generally are notfoelderiods over one year.
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Fourth Quarter 2008 Distribution Indicated Price

In an effort to provide information concerning @rcof oil and gas sales that correspond to outepyadistributions, management
calculates the weighted average price by dividirgsg revenues received by the net volumes of thregmonding product without regard to the
timing of the production to which such sales mayatigbutable. This “indicated price” does not nesaily reflect the contractual terms for
such sales and may be affected by transportatists docation differentials, and quality and grawdtjustments. While the relationship
between the Partnership’s cash receipts and thiegiof the production of oil and gas may be desatigenerally, actual cash receipts may be
materially impacted by purchasers’ release of sudpe funds and by prior period adjustments.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’saRgyroperties during the 2008 fourth quarterlemts$13,368,000. These receipts
generally reflect oil sales during September thtodNgvember 2008 and gas sales during August thr@Qabber 2008. The weighted average
indicated prices for oil and gas sales during @8Xourth quarter attributable to the Royalty Rnties were $84.68/bbl and $7.02/mcf.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’sMefits Interests during the 2008 fourth quantéaled $3,777,000. These receipts
generally reflect oil and gas sales from the prigeunderlying the Net Profits Interests duringg@st through October 2008. The weighted
average indicated price for gas sales during ti@8 26urth quarter attributable to the Net Profitierests was $5.40/mcf. Due to the small
amount of oil production, the weighted averagedatid price for oil sales during the fourth quacke$173.53 was highly distorted by an
operator’s adjustments to production from priorqes.

General and Administrative Costs

In accordance with our partnership agreement, vae &légeneral and administrative and other ovetlegenses subject to certain
limitations. We reimburse our general partner fertain allocable costs, including rent, wages,r&gdaand employee benefit plans. This
reimbursement is limited to an amount equal tostiva of 5% of our distributions plus certain cosevipusly paid. Through December 31,
2008, the limitation was substantially in excesshefreimbursement amounts actually paid or accrued

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The following information provides quantitative aqdalitative information about our potential exp@suto market risk. The term
“market risk” refers to the risk of loss arisingiin adverse changes in oil and natural gas prinesgist rates and currency exchange rates. The
disclosures are not meant to be precise indicatioegpected future losses, but rather indicatongoskible losses.

Market Risk Related to Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Essentially all of our assets and sources of incaradrom the Net Profits Interests and the RoyRhyperties, which generally entitle us
to receive a share of the proceeds from oil andrabgas production on those properties. Consetyjevt are subject to market risk from
fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices. Priciagoil and natural gas production has been Jelatnd unpredictable for several years. We do
not anticipate entering into financial hedging atigs intended to reduce our exposure to oil aattiral gas price fluctuations.

Absence of Interest Rate and Currency Exchange Riake

We do not anticipate having a credit facility ocumring any debt, other than trade debt. Therefoeedo not expect interest rate risk tc
material to us. We do not anticipate engagingangactions in foreign currencies which could expesto foreign currency related market ri
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements are set fegthin commencing on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Partnership maintains disclosure controls andgalures that are designed to ensure that infasmegquired to be disclosed in its
filings with the SEC are recorded, processed, surizeand reported within the time period specifiethe SEC’s rules and forms, and that
such information is accumulated and communicateddanagement, including its chief executive andfdimancial officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sbased on the definition of “disclosure contrald parocedures” as defined in Rule 13(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8#18s amended (the Exchange Act).

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management acknowledges its responsibility fortdisthing and maintaining adequate internal corakar financial reporting in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated underkchange Act. Management has also evaluatedféaieeness of its internal control
over external financial reporting in accordancehvgénerally accepted accounting principles withim guidelines of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commiskamework. Based on the results of this evaluatManagement has determined tha
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay was effective as of December 31, 2008.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our Partnership’s intexmatrol over financial reporting (as defined inl®Rui3a-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended bz 31, 2008, that have materially affected, erraasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item is incorp@therein by reference to the 2009 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent tember 31, 2008.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2009 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent ¢terber 31, 2008.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@eterein by reference to the 2009 Proxy Statemdmith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent teber 31, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2009 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent tember 31, 2008.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@@terein by reference to the 2009 Proxy Statemdmith will be filed with the
Commission not later than 120 days subsequent teber 31, 2008.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

(1) See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statenm@aniszage -1.
(2)  No schedules are require

(3) Exhibits.
Number Description
3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exi8bitto Dorchester Minerals’

Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

3.2 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartigfrDorchester Minerals, L.P. (incorporated bference to Exhibit 3.2
to Dorchester Minera’ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.3 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Management LP (incorporated by referen&extuobit 3.4 to Dorcheste
Minerals' Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

34 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartieftDorchester Minerals Management LP (incorpedaty reference to
Exhibit 3.4 to Dorchester Minerd Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.5 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals Mgement GP LLC (incorporated by reference to ExI3ildi to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

3.6 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agment of Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLCofiporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Dorchester Mine’ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.7 Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals @qing GP LLC (incorporated by reference to Exh®hitO to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

3.8 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Dorchesteindrals Operating GP LLC (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.11 tc
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

3.9 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Operating LP (incorporated by referencexoiltit 3.12 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

3.1C Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartieftDorchester Minerals Operating LP (incorpodaly reference to
Exhibit 3.10 to Dorchester Miner? Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.11 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference tuiltiix3.11 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.12 Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Mate Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference to Bixl3.12 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.1: Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester Miner@klahoma GP, Inc. (incorporated by reference thiliik3.13 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.14 Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inccdiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.14 to Dorckebtineral’ Report or
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20

3.1t Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Acquisition LP (incorporated by referenc&xibit 3.15 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20
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Number

3.1¢

3.17

3.1¢

10.1

10.z

10.c

10.4

10.t

21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
23.3*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

Description
Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Male Acquisition LP (incorporated by reference tdibit 3.16 to Dorchest
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2I

Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester MinerAlsquisition GP, Inc. (incorporated by referencétdnibit 3.17 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2I

Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Acquisition GP, Ifiocorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.18 to Dastier Minerals’ Report on
form 1C-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2!

Amended and Restated Business Opportunities Agnetetia¢ed as of December 13, 2001 by and betweeRdfhestrant, the
General Partner, Dorchester Minerals ManagementIG&R SAM Partners, Ltd., Vaughn Petroleum, Ltd.,iBnAllen Oil &
Gas, Inc., P.A. Peak, Inc., James E. Raley, Imd cartain other parties (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.1 to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Transfer Restriction Agreement (incorporated bgmefice to Exhibit 10.2 to Dorchester Minerals’ Répa Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 201

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated bynexfee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dorchester Minerals’ Remor Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 201

Lock-Up Agreement by William Casey McManemin (incorperhby reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dorchester Mate' Report ot
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by refieeto Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Minerals’ RepatForm 10-Q for the
qguarter ended June 30, 20(

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Grant Thornton LL

Consent of Calhoun, Blair & Associat

Consent of Huddleston & Co., Ir

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieifnancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1

* Filed herewitr
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND GAS TERMS

The definitions set forth below shall apply to thdicated terms as used in this document. All vadaraf natural gas referred to herein
stated at the legal pressure base of the stateamdnere the reserves exist and at 60 degreesrifadir and in most instances are rounded t
nearest major multiple.

“bbl” means a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons anésepts the basic unit for measuring the produdfamude oil, natural gas liqui
and condensate.

“bcf” means one billion cubic feet under prescribed d@s of pressure and temperature and represemts for measuring the
production of natural gas.

“Depletion” means (a) the volume of hydrocarbons extracted &idormation over a given period of time, (b) theerof hydrocarbon
extraction over a given period of time expressed psrcentage of the reserves existing at the bagjrof such period, or (c) the amount of «
basis at the beginning of a period attributablthéovolume of hydrocarbons extracted during suctogde

“Division order” means a document to protect lessees and purctdgasduction, in which all parties who may havelam to the
proceeds of the sale of production agree upon hewptoceeds are to be divided.

“Enhanced recovery’means the process or combination of processesedpplia formation to extract hydrocarbons in addito those
that would be produced utilizing the natural eneggisting in that formation. Examples of enhanaswbrery include water flooding and carl
dioxide (CO2) injection.

“Estimated future net revenuegalso referred to as “estimated future net cash”jlaneans the result of applying current prices ofai
natural gas to estimated future production fronaaill natural gas proved reserves, reduced by dstifizture expenditures, based on current
costs to be incurred in developing and producimgpttoved reserves, excluding overhead.

“Formation” means a distinct geologic interval, sometimes retkto as the strata, which has characteristiash(as permeability,
porosity and hydrocarbon saturations) that dististgit from surrounding intervals.

“Gross acre” means the number of surface acres in which a wgrkiterest is owned.

“Gross well” means a well in which a working interest is owned.

“Lease bonus”means the initial cash payment made to a lessarlegsee in consideration for the execution andeyance of the lease.
“Leasehold” means an acre in which a working interest is owned.

“Lessee” means the owner of a lease of a mineral interesttiact of land.

“Lessor” means the owner of the mineral interest who graméase of his interest in a tract of land to edtparty, referred to as the
lessee.

“Mineral interest” means the interest in the minerals beneath thasidf a tract of land. A mineral interest may &eesed from the
ownership of the surface of the tract. Ownership ofineral interest generally involves four incitteof ownership: (1) the right to use the
surface; (2) the right to incur costs and retafifs, also called the right to develop; (3) thghtito transfer all or a portion of the mineral
interest; and (4) the right to retain lease besgiitcluding bonuses and delay rentals.
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“mcf” means one thousand cubic feet under prescribedtim sdof pressure and temperature and repredeatsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“mbbls” means one thousand standard barrels of 42 U.®ngalind represents the basic unit for measuringrthgtuction of crude ail,
natural gas liquids and condensate.

“mmcf’ means one million cubic feet under prescribed dmr i of pressure and temperature and representsagic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“Net acre” means the product determined by multiplying grasssby the interest in such acres.
“Net well” means the product determined by multiplying grabaral natural gas wells by the interest in suckisve

“Net profits interest”’means a non-operating interest that creates a shgress production from another (operating or-operating)
interest in oil and natural gas properties. Theekadetermined by net profits from the sale aidurction and customarily provides for the
deduction of capital and operating costs from ttee@eds of the sale of production. The owner odtgonofits interest is customarily liable for
the payment of capital and operating costs ontj¢oextent that revenue is sufficient to pay sum$tcbut not otherwise.

“Operator” means the individual or company responsible foretk@oration, development, and production of arooihatural gas well or
lease.

“Overriding royalty interest”’means a royalty interest created or reserved froothar (operating or non-operating) interest inaidl
natural gas properties. Its term extends for timeesterm as the interest from which it is created.

“Payout” or “Back-in” occurs when the working interest owners who paudite in the costs of drilling and completing a wetioup the
costs and expenses, or a multiple of the costeapenses, of drilling and completing that well. Ytlen are the owners who chose not to
contribute to these initial costs entitled to papiate with the other owners in production and shiatthe expenses and revenues associated witl
the well. The reversionary interest or back-in iegt of an owner similarly occurs when the ownerooees entitled to a specified share of the
working or overriding royalty interest when speeificosts have been recovered from production.

“Proved developed reservesiieans reserves that can be expected to be recabheoegh existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods. Additional oil and gas expettelse obtained through the application of fluideiztjon or other improved recovery
techniques for supplementing the natural forcesraadhanisms of primary recovery should be incluaetproved developed reserves” only
after testing by a pilot project or after the opieraof an installed program has confirmed thropgbduction response that increased recovery
will be achieved.

“Proved reserves” or “Proved oil and gas reservesieans the estimated quantities of crude oil, negas, and natural gas liquids that
geological and engineering data demonstrate wabkaeable certainty to be recoverable in futures/&am known reservoirs under existing
economic and operating conditions, i.e., prices@gls as of the date the estimate is made. Rricksle consideration of changes in existing
prices provided only by contractual arrangementsbtion escalations based upon future conditions.

(i) Reservoirs are considered proved if economaapcibility is supported by either actual produntar a conclusive formation te
The area of a reservoir considered proved inclaethat portion delineated by drilling and defingdgas-oil and/or oivater contacts,
any; and (b) the immediately adjoining portions yett drilled but which can be reasonably judged@somically productive on the bz
of
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available geological and engineering data. In tieeace of information on fluid contacts, the lowestwn structural occurrence of
hydrocarbons controls the lower proved limit of thservoir.

(i) Reserves that can be produced economicallyutiin application of improved recovery techniqueglisas fluid injection) are
included in the “proved” classification when sucfestesting by a pilot project, or the operatidran installed program in the reservoir,
provides support for the engineering analysis oitwthe project or program was based.

(iii) Estimates of proved reserves do not incluoke following: (a) oil that may become availablenfr&nown reservoirs but is
classified separately as “indicated additional nes&'; (b) crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids,recovery of which is subject
reasonable doubt because of uncertainty as to ggaleservoir characteristics, or economic factf@scrude oil, natural gas, and natural
gas liquids that may occur in undrilled prospeaty] (d) crude oil, natural gas, and natural gagd&jthat may be recovered from oil
shales, coal, gilsonite and other such sources.

“Proved undeveloped reservegieans proved reserves that are expected to beerezbfrom new wells on undrilled acreage, or from
existing wells where a relatively major expenditigreequired for recompletion.

“Royalty” means an interest in an oil and gas lease thas ¢ineeowner of the interest the right to receiy®aion of the production from
the leased acreage (or of the proceeds of thateieof) but generally does not require the owagqray any portion of the costs of drilling or
operating the wells on the leased acreage.

“Severance tax'means an amount of tax, surcharge or levy recoMgyegbvernmental agencies from the gross procekdis @and nature
gas sales. Production tax may be determined ascargage of proceeds or as a specific amount gemeiric unit of sales. Severance tax is
usually withheld from the gross proceeds of oil aatural gas sales by the first purchaser (e.gelipie or refinery) of production.

“Standardized measure of discounted future net dksts” (also referred to as “standardized measumegans the pretax present valus
estimated future net revenues to be generatedtiiemproduction of proved reserves calculated imatance with SEC guidelines, net of
estimated production and future development caosiag prices and costs as of the date of estimatithrout future escalation, without giving
effect to non-property related expenses such asrgkand administrative expenses, debt servicalapteciation, depletion and amortization,
and discounted using an annual discount rate of. 10%

“Test Rate”means a daily volume of oil, gas or condensatehattwa well produced to a pipeline or tank battsithin that well’s first
month of production based on information obtainmeanf public sources or from the operator.

“Undeveloped acreageimeans lease acreage on which wells have not bédlerd dr completed to a point that would permit the
production of commercial quantities of oil and matwas regardless of whether such acreage corgeined reserves.

“Unitization” means the process of combining mineral interesksases thereof in separate tracts of land intngesentity for
administrative, operating or ownership purposestitation is sometimes called “pooling” or “commtination” and may be voluntary or
involuntary.

“Working interest” (also referred to as an “operating interest”) meansal property interest entitling the owner toeiige a specified
percentage of the proceeds of the sale of oil atdral gas production or a percentage of the pito@ubut requiring the owner of the working
interest to bear the cost to explore for, develwgp groduce such oil and natural gas. A workingregeowner who owns a portion of the
working interest may participate either as operatdsy voting his percentage interest to approveisepprove the appointment of an operator
and certain activities in connection with the depahent and operation of a property.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

Date: February 26, 2009

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P

By: Dorchester Minerals Management |
its general partne

By: Dorchester Minerals Management GP LI
its general partne

By: /s/ William Casey McManemi
William Casey McManemil
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEaathange Act of 1934, this report has been sigmdalibby the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

/s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemin

Chief Executive Officer and Manager
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 26, 20(

/s/ James E. Rale

James E. Raley
Chief Operating Officer and Manager
Date: February 26, 20(

/s/ Preston A. Peak

Preston A. Pea
Manager
Date: February 26, 20(

/s/ Ronald P. TroL

Ronald P. Trout
Manager
Date: February 26, 20(
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/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Officer and Manager
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: February 26, 20(

/s/ Buford P. Bern
Buford P. Berry
Manager

Date: February 26, 20(

/sl C. W. Russell

C. W. Russel

Manager

Date: February 26, 20(

/sl Robert C. Vaugh
Robert C. Vaughn
Manager

Date: February 26, 20(
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dorchester Minerals, L.f
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingy
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&00200%
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and Z
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Partnershjtal#or the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 20@72006
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

F-1

F-4
F-5
F-6

F-8



Table of Contents
Index to Financial Statements

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited Dorchester Minerals, L.P.’s (a data Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries (coNety, the “Partnership”) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3108, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd®@ommission (COSO). The Partnership’s manageiseasponsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportingd for its assessment of the effectiveness efrat control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Annual Reporinterhal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgbility is to express an opinion on
the Partnership’s internal control over financigpaorting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedadof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstanceddlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, imaditerial respects, effective internal control dfueancial reporting as of December 31,
2008, based on criteria establishednirernal Control—Integrated Framewoitsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Partnership@saember 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related coiasetl statements of operations, cash
flows, and changes in partnership capital for ezfdhe three years then ended, and our report dagbcuary 26, 2009 expressed an unqual
opinion on those financial statements.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 26, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (a Delawaréted Partnership) and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Partnership”) dDecember 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related tidased statements of operations, cash
flows, and changes in partnership capital for e#che three years in the period ended Decembe2(18. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Partnership’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion on théserfcial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstatts of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principded and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of the
Partnership as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 henbsults of their operations and their cash fllwsach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accimgnprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé&taf America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay as of December 31, 2008, based on criterebished innternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrbe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regattd February 26,
2009 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 26, 2009
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2008 and 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade and other receivabl
Net profits interests receival—related party
Total current asse

Other nor-current asset

Property and leasehold improveme—at cost:
Qil and natural gas properties (full cost meth
Accumulated full cost depletic
Total

Leasehold improvemen
Accumulated amortizatio

Total
Net property and leasehold improveme
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilil
Current portion of deferred rent incenti
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent incentive less current port
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Partnership capita
General partne
Unitholders
Total partnership capiti
Total liabilities and partnership capi

2008 2007
$ 16,21 $ 15,00
5,05: 7,05:
4,42¢ 3,57¢
25,69: 25,63(
19 19
291,81 291,83(
(178,27) (163,58;)
113,54¢ 128,24
512 512
(207) (15€)
30E 354
113,85 128,60:
$ 139,56 $ 154,25:
$ 732 $ 517
39 39
772 55€
20€ 24¢
98¢ 804
5,971 6,417
132,61 147,03(
138,58: 153,44
$ 139,56 $ 154,25

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and BOO
(Dollars in Thousands, except per unit amounts)

Operating revenue
Royalties
Net profits interest
Lease bonu
Other

Total operating revenut

Costs and expense
Production taxe
Operating expenst
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
General and administrative expen

Total costs and expens
Operating incom
Other income, ne
Net earning:

Allocation of net earnings
General Partne

Unitholders
Net earnings per common unit (basic and dilu
Weighted average common units outstanding’s)

2008

2007

2006

$61,97:  $44,39¢  $45,17:
27,44: 20,34 22,29¢
441 57¢ 7,41¢

7C 45 40
89,92t 65,36 74,92°
2,792 2,09t 2,23¢
1,98( 1,77¢ 1,82(
14,73¢ 15,567 18,47(
3,96¢ 3,591 3,05¢
23,47¢ 23,02¢ 25,58¢
66,44¢ 42,34( 49,34
334 70¢ 86¢
$66,78:  $43,04¢  $50,21(
$199¢ $127¢ $ 152
$64,78¢  $41,77¢  $48,69(
$ 23C $ 148 $ 1.7:
28,24( 28,24( 28,24(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 800
(Dollars in Thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning: $ 66,78: $ 43,04¢ $ 50,21(
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiiged by operating activitie
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 14,73¢ 15,567 18,47(
Write-off related to unsuccessful acquisiti 62 57 —
Amortization of deferred ret (40) (39 (39
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade and other receivabl 2,00 (965) 1,52
Net profits interests receival—related party (852 55C 2,87(C
Prepaid expense — — 22
Accounts payable and other current liabilit 21€ 214 (277)
Net cash provided by operating activit 82,90¢ 58,43: 72,78:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from note receiva—related party — 55 50
Capital expenditure (50) (12 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (50) 43 50
Cash flows from financing activitie
Distributions paid to partne (81,649 (57,40) (82,299
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivs 1,21C 1,074 (9,467)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 15,00! 13,92% 23,38¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 16,217 $ 15,00: $ 13,927

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERSHIP C APITAL
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 800
(Dollars in Thousands)

General

Year Partner Unitholders Total
2006
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 7,66: $192,22: $199,88!
Net earning: 1,52( 48,69( 50,21(
Distributions ($2.829597 per Uni (2,38¢6) (79,909 (82,29Y)
Balance at December 31, 20 6,79 161,00: 167,80(
2007
Net earning: 1,27¢ 41,774 43,04¢
Distributions ($1.973989 per Un| (1,659 (55,74 (57,40)
Balance at December 31, 20 6,415 147,03( 153,44
2008
Net earning: 1,99¢ 64,78¢ 66,78
Distributions ($2.804603 per Un| (2,445 (79,209) (81,649
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 5,971 $132,61: $138,58:.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Operations—In these Notes, the term “Partnership,” as wethasterms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometén used as
abbreviated references to Dorchester Minerals, itsBIf or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. and its rethéatities. Our Partnership is a Dallas, Texas
based owner of producing and nonproducing natwslaad crude oil royalty, net profits, and leasefiatierests in 573 counties and 25 states.
We are a publicly traded Delaware limited partngrshat was formed in December 2001, and commenpedations on January 31, 2003.

Basis of Presentation-Per-unit information is calculated by dividing tearnings or loss applicable to holders of our Rastnip’s
common units by the weighted average number ofunitstanding. The Partnership has no potentidlyive securities and, consequently,
basic and dilutive earnings per unit do not differ.

Principles of Consolidation—Fhe consolidated financial statements include ttomants of Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Dorchester
Minerals Oklahoma, LP, Dorchester Minerals Oklahdg®y Inc., Dorchester Minerals Acquisition LP, d&afchester Minerals Acquisition
GP, Inc. All significant intercompany balances #érahsactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuigotions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efctnsolidated financial statements and the rep@nt@ounts of revenues and expenses durin
reporting period. For example, estimates of unctd#ié revenues and unpaid expenses from royalteaetnprofits interests in properties
operated by non-affiliated entities are particylatbjective due to inability to gain accurate éintely information. Therefore, actual results
could differ from those estimates. See “Iltem 1.iBeiss—Customers and Pricing” and “Item 2. “Progsrti-Royalty Properties” for additional
discussion.

The discounted present value of our proved oil gaslreserves is a major component of the ceilit@utzdion and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aseémts based on engineering and geological anagésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiegilodind natural gas reserves based on the sawrenafion. The passage of time provides n
qualitative information regarding reserve estimatesl revisions are made to prior estimates basegbdated information. However, there can
be no assurance that more significant revisionkneil be necessary in the future. Significant doardwevisions could result in an impairment
representing a non-cash charge to earnings. Iniaddd the impact on calculation of the ceilingtieestimates of proved reserves are also a
major component of the calculation of depletiore 8ee discussion undBroperty and Equipment

General Partner—Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Managei@, referred to in these Notes as “our geneainer.” Our
general partner owns all of the partnership interesDorchester Minerals Operating LP, the opagatiartnership. See Note-3Related Party
Transactions. The general partner is allocated 186486 of our Net Profits Interests revenues andaRpyProperties revenues, respectively.
Our executive officers all own an interest in oangral partner and receive no compensation foicenas officers of our Partnership.

Cash and Cash Equivalents@ur principal banking is with major financial irtsions. Cash balances in these accounts maynaesti
exceed federally insured limits. We have not exgrered any losses in such cash accounts and delimidowe are exposed to any significant
risk on cash and cash equivalents. Short term
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

investments with a maturity of three months or Eegsconsidered to be cash equivalents and aiedatrcost, which approximates fair value.
Other income includes interest earned on short tlevestments of $329,000, $578,000, and $696,0@0@8, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risks-©ur Partnership, as a royalty owner, has no cootret the volumes or method of sale of oil and ratu
gas produced and sold from the Royalty Propeftiés believed that the loss of any single customeuld not have a material adverse effec
the consolidated results of our operations.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFhe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalenaide treceivables and payables approximates fai
value because of the short maturity of those insémts. These estimated fair values may not be septative of actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as afged or that will be realized in the future.

Trade Receivables-Our Partnership’s trade receivables consist prisnafiRoyalty Properties payments receivable antdMNefits
Interests payments receivable. Most payments asved two to four months after production date.alowance for doubtful accounts is
deemed necessary.

Note Receivable—Related Partyodr Note Receivable consisted of a five-year netgaple by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP,
referred to in these Notes as “the operating pestij,” bearing interest at 6% having an origimalant of $250,836. Principal and interest
payments were received quarterly. The note wasipdidl at December 31, 2007.

Property and Equipment-We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and gas properties. Untisrhethod,
all such costs are capitalized and amortized caggmnegate basis over the estimated lives of theepties using the units-gfroduction methot
These capitalized costs are subject to a ceilisg ®wever, which limits such pooled costs todpgregate of the present value of future net
revenues attributable to proved oil and gas resalissounted at 10% plus the lower of cost or ntarkie of unproved properties. Our
Partnership did not assign any value to unproveggities, including nonproducing royalty, mineratldeasehold interests. The full cost
ceiling is evaluated at the end of each quartenvemeh events indicate possible impairment.

While the guantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil gaslreserves that are included in the
discounted present value of our reserves are dbgdctletermined. The ceiling test calculation riegsi use of prices and costs in effect as of
the last day of the accounting period, which amegally held constant for the life of the propestids a result, the present value is not
necessarily an indication of the fair value of teserves. Oil and gas prices have historically vetatile, and the prevailing prices at any gi
time may not reflect our Partnership’s or the irtdds forecast of future prices.

Our Partnership’s properties are being depletethemnit-ofproduction method using estimates of proved oil gaslreserves. Gains &
losses are recognized upon the disposition ofrmligas properties involving a significant portigmeater than 25%) of our Partnership’s
reserves. Proceeds from other dispositions ofrallgas properties are credited to the full cost.gdo gains or losses have been recorded for
2008, 2007 or 2006.

Leasehold improvements include $415,000 receiva®@¥ as an incentive in our office space leasesanffset in liabilities as deferred
rent. Leasehold improvements are amortized ovestiogter of their estimated useful lives or thated lease life of 10 years. For leases with
renewal periods at the Partnership’s option, we
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have used the original lease term, excluding reheption periods to determine useful life. Deferredt incentive is being amortized to gen
and administrative expense over the same termedsadlsehold improvements, which is 10 years.

Asset Retirement ObligatiorsBased on the nature of our property ownershiphaxe no material obligation required to be recorded

Revenue Recognitiea-The pricing of oil and natural gas sales fromRuyalty Properties is primarily determined by sypghd demand
in the marketplace and can fluctuate considerasya royalty owner, we have extremely limited ink@hent and operational control over the
volumes and method of sale of oil and natural gadyced and sold from the Royalty Properties.

Revenues from Royalty Properties and Net Profitsrésts are recorded under the cash receipts appaseadirectly received from the
remitters’ statement accompanying the revenue ct&ioke the revenue checks are generally receiveda four months after the production
month, the Partnership accrues for revenue eammeddd received by estimating production volumed product prices.

Income Taxes-We are treated as a partnership for income taxga@gpand, as a result, our income or loss is ifdkich the tax returns
of the individual unitholders. Unitholders shoulshsult tax advisors concerning their own tax siamatDepletion of oil and natural gas
properties is an expense allowable to each indaligartner, and the depletion expense as reportedeoconsolidated financial statements will
not be indicative of the depletion expense an iiddial partner or unitholder may be able to dedaciricome tax purposes.

During 2006, the Texas Legislature passed H.B.I8¢hvis a new tax system, commonly referred tchasTtexas margin tax. The Texas
margin tax applies to corporations and limitedilisbcompanies, general and limited partnershipdé€ss otherwise exempt), limited liability
partnerships, trusts (unless otherwise exemptjnbss trusts, business associations, professigsatmtions, joint stock companies, holding
companies, joint ventures and certain other busieatities having limited liability protection. Tledfective date of the Texas margin tax was
January 1, 2008, but the tax generally will be isgzbon gross revenues generated in 2007 and ttegreaf

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirgsading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeione from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m#agias “passive entities.” We believe our Paghigrmeets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingaxposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the Fewargin tax. If exempt from tax at the
Partnership level as a passive entity, each umitiradhat is considered a taxable entity under &3 margin tax would generally be required
to include its Texas portion of Partnership revenuets own Texas margin tax computation. Sucleneres would be sourced to the State of
Texas under Texas comptroller guidance that prevédieh income is sourced according to the pringifzade of business of the Partnership.

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisahwregarding the requirements for filing stateome, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.

New Accounting Pronouncements$r-September 2006, the Financial Accounting StasslBoard (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Accounting Standards No. 15air Value MeasurementsSFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value, estdi®is a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands disclosures about fairevateasurements. SFAS 157 also emphasizes thaafae is a market-based measurement,
not an entity-specific
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measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarctiythé highest priority being quoted prices inatinarkets. Under SFAS 157, fair value
measurements are disclosed by level within thathify. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASBfRasition 157-2Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 1(“FSP 157-2") which permits a one year deferraltf@ implementation of SFAS 157 with regard to irearficial

assets and liabilities that are not recognizedsmiased at fair value in the financial statememnts recurring basis. We adopted SFAS 157 for
the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008 with rademal impact on our consolidated financial staata. We will adopt the delayed portion
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitieattare recognized or disclosed at fair value irfittencial statements on a nonrecurring basis
beginning January 1, 2009. We do not anticipateterial impact on our consolidated financial staata for this delayed portion.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofn€inhAccounting Standards 141 (revised 208I)siness Combinatiof{SFAS 141
(R)). SFAS 141(R), among other things, establigitexiples and requirements for how the acquirea business combination (a) recognizes
and measures in its financial statements the ffiiilié assets acquired, the liabilities assumed,aay noncontrolling interest in the acquired
business, (b) recognizes and measures the goabgiliired in the business combination or a gain fadmargain purchase, and (c) determines
what information to disclose to enable users offit@ncial statements to evaluate the nature avahtiial effects of the business combination.
SFAS 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginnorgor after December 15, 2008, with early adopgiophibited. We are required to adopt
SFAS 141(R) for all business combinations for whtoh acquisition date is on or after January 1920®e adoption will not have an
immediate impact on our consolidated financialestants.

2. Acquisitions

We have an effective registration statement on Fe#fnregistering 5,000,000 common units that magffered and issued by the
Partnership from time to time in connection witsetsacquisitions or other business combinatiorstations. At present, none of the 5,000,000
units have been issued.

3. Related Party Transactions

Our general partner owns all of the partnershiprggts in the operating partnership. It is the eygal of all personnel, owns the working
interests and other properties underlying our Nefif3 Interests, and provides day-to-day operati@md administrative services to us and the
general partner. In accordance with our partnerabipement, we reimburse the general partner ftaineallocable general and administrative
costs, including rent, salaries, and employee ligplehs. These types of reimbursements are lintaeso of distributions, plus certain costs
previously paid. All such costs have been substiyntielow the 5% limit amount. Additionally, ceitareimbursable direct costs such as
professional and regulatory fees and ad valorensamdrance taxes, are not limited. Significantwégtbetween the partnership and the
operating partnership consists of the following:

In Thousands

From/To Operating Partnership 2008 2007 2006

Net Profits Interests Payments Receivable or Aat® $4,42¢  $3,57¢  $4,12¢
Note Receivabls $ — $ — $ 5E
Interest Income related to Net Profits Interestgniants $ 1 ¢ 1 $ 8
General & Administrative Amounts Payal $ 146 $ 52 $ 4C
General & Administrative Amounts Accru $ 58 $ 31 $ 23
Total General & Administrative Amoun $2,69C $2,36F  $2,08¢

(D All Net Profits Interests income on the financitltements is from the operating partnership.
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Less than $15,000 in fees for legal services ware ip 2008, 2007 and 2006 to a family member wfeamber of our executive
management.

4. Commitments and Contingencies

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oiah regarding the use of natural gas from the virellesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly oviayeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contributeajor portion of the Net Profits
Interests amounts paid to us. On April 9, 2007ingikés, for immaterial costs, dismissed with prejce all claims against the operating
partnership regarding such residential gas useD@aber 4, 2004, the plaintiffs filed severed claiagainst the operating partnership regarding
royalty underpayments, which the Texas County Ris€ourt subsequently dismissed with a grantroktto replead. On January 27, 2006,
of the original plaintiffs again sued the operatpagtnership for underpayment of royalty, seekilagg action certification. On October 1, 2C
the Texas County District Court granted the opegagiartnership’s motion for summary judgment fimdito royalty underpayments.
Subsequently, the District Court denied the pléfiatmotion for reconsideration, and the plainfifed an appeal. At present, the litigation
awaits result of the appeal to the Oklahoma Supi@met. An adverse appellate decision could reduceunts we receive from the Net Pro
Interests.

Our Partnership and the operating partnershipra@ved in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesi@gmificant effect on consolidated
financial position, cash flows, or operating result

Operating Leases-We have entered into a non-cancelable, renewalpieeghiling rate for an additional five years, aiarg lease
agreement in the ordinary course of our businetgitées. The lease is for our office space at 388tk Lawn Avenue, Suite 300, Dallas, Te:
and expires in 2015. Rental expense related ttets®, including operating expenses and consumetfielectricity, was $200,000, $199,000,
and $174,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2006, respectively. The base rent essalaOctober 2010. Minimum rental
commitments under the terms of our operating leaseas follows:

Minimum

Years Ended December 31, Payments

2009 $ 225,00(
2010 228,00(
2011 237,00(
2012 240,00(
2013 249,00(
Thereaftel 326,00(
Total $ 1,505,001
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5. Distribution To Holders Of Common Units
Unitholder cash distributions per common unit haeen:

Per Unit Amount

2008 2007 2006
First Quarte! $0.57230I $0.46114 $0.72985;
Second Quarte $0.76920! $0.47374! $0.77812
Third Quartel $0.94847. $0.56050: $0.51608:
Fourth Quarte $0.54208: $0.51462! $0.47859!

Distributions were paid on 28,240,431 units. Foutlarter distributions are paid in February offiiowing calendar year to unitholders
of record in January or February of such followyegr. The partnership agreement requires the ekt distribution to be paid by May 15,
2009.

6. Unaudited Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardied Measure Information

The Net Profits Interests represent net profitsadieg royalty interests in various properties @drby the operating partnership. The
Royalty Properties consist of producing and nonpeath mineral, royalty, overriding royalty, net fits, and leasehold interests located in 573
counties and parishes in 25 states. Amounts st fi@rein attributable to the Net Profits Interesffect our 96.97% net share. Although new
discoveries have occurred on certain of the RoyRtoperties, based on engineering studies avaitaldate, no events have occurred since
December 31, 2008 that would have a material effeaiur estimated proved developed reserves.

In accordance with SFAS No. 69 and Securities armh&ge Commission rules and regulations, thevatlg information is presented
with regard to the Net Profits Interests and RgyBHltoperties oil and gas reserves, all of whichpaozed, developed and located in the United
States. These rules require inclusion as a suppietmé¢he basic financial statements a standardizeasure of discounted future net cash fl
relating to proved oil and gas reserves. The staliwkd measure, in management’s opinion, shouleikiaenined with caution. The basis for
these disclosures is petroleum engineers’ reséngtes which contain imprecise estimates of quiastiénd rates of production of reserves.
Revision of prior year estimates can have a sigguifi impact on the results. Also, exploration araipction improvement costs in one year
may significantly change previous estimates of ptbkeserves and their valuation. Values of unprgregerties and anticipated future price
and cost increases or decreases are not considéremfore, the standardized measure is not natlgsséest estimate of the fair value of oil
and gas properties or of future net cash flows.
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The following summaries of changes in reservesstaiddardized measure of discounted future netftask were prepared from
estimates of proved reserves. The production voduamnel reserve volumes included for properties fdsnwvned by Dorchester Hugoton are
wellhead volumes, which differ from sales volumbkewsn in “ltem 7.—Management’s Discussion and Anislys Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” because of fuel, shrinkagkmpeline loss. The Standardized Measure of Distad Future Net Cash Flows reflects
adjustments for such fuel, shrinkage and pipelass.|

Summary of Changes in Proved Reserves

Qil (mbbl) Natural Gas (mmcf)
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Estimated quantity, beginning of ye 3,566 3,80z 4,02¢ 61,258 65,79 66,29¢
Purchase of minerals in pla — — — — —
Revisions in previous estimat 317 8C 117 8,07(C 3,721 8,467
Production (313 (316) (344 (8,34 (8,269 (8,969
Estimated quantity, end of ye 3,57C 3,56€ 3,80z 60,977 61,25% 65,79¢
Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows
(Dollars in Thousands)
2008 2007 2006

Future estimated gross reveni $ 361,97 $ 636,73: $ 482,05:
Future estimated production co (17,38) (31,969 (23,479
Future estimated net revent 344,59 604,76! 458,57¢
10% annual discount for estimated timing of castw (155,109 (288,399 (212,416
Standardized measure of discounted future estinratedash flow: $ 189,48 $ 316,36° $ 246,15¢
Sales of oil and natural gas produced, net of prtclu costs $ (84,647) $ (60,87) $ (63,410
Net changes in prices and production ¢ (102,40)) 87,89¢ (71,24))
Revisions of previous quantity estima 22,93t 16,08: 25,45¢
Accretion of discoun 31,631 24,61¢ 34,36¢
Change in production rate and ot 5,58¢ 2,49( (22,697

Net change in standardized measure of discountadsfestimated net cash flo $(126,88)) $ 70,20¢ $ (97,52)
Depletion of oil and natural gas properties (dsllper mcfe $ 144 $ 1.5¢ $ 167
Property acquisition cos $ — $ — $ —

Recent SEC Rule-Making Activity—In December 2008 SEC announced that it had approved revisiorigrkxb to modernize the oil
and gas company reserve reporting requirementsmise significant amendments to the requiremerdside the following:

» Commodity Price—Economic producibility of reserves and discountashcflows will be based on a-month average commaodi
price unless contractual arrangements designateriteto be usec

» Disclosure of Unproved Reser—Probable and possible reserves may be disclosedlagely on a voluntary bas
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» Proved Undeveloped Reserve Guidelines—Reservedmalassified as proved undeveloped if there iigjla legree of confidence
that the quantities will be recovere

* Reserve Estimation Using New Technolo—Reserves may be estimated through the use of leeliathnology in addition to floy
tests and production histot

* Reserve Personnel and Estimation Prc—Additional disclosure is required regarding theliiecations of the chief technic:
person who oversees our reserves estimation progéswill also be required to provide a generatdssion of our internal contre
used to assure the objectivity of the reservemasé.

» Disclosure by Geographic Area—Reserves in foremmtries or continents must be presented sepaitalyy represent more
than 15% of our total oil and gas proved reser

* Non-Traditional Resource—The definition of oil and gas producing activiti®dl expand and focus on the marketable proc
rather than the method of extracti

The rules are effective for fiscal years endingpoafter December 31, 2009, and early adoptiomigpermitted. We are currently
evaluating the new rules and assessing the impeagtwill have on our reported oil and natural gaserves. The SEC is coordinating with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board to obtainréwsions necessary to SFAS 19, “Financial Accayndnd Reporting by Oil and Gas
Producing Companies”, and SFAS 69 to provide cterscy with the new rules. In the event that coesisy is not achieved in time for
companies to comply with the new rules, the SECauihsider delaying the compliance date.

7. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data
Quarterly financial data for the last two yearstfinusands except per unit data) is summarizedliasvs:

2008 Quarter Ended 2007 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Net operating revenus $21,27. $28,98¢ $24,48° $1517¢ $14,71: $17,61! $14,71¢ $18,32:
Net earning: $15,41( $23,16¢ $1859( $ 9,617 $ 9,12¢ $12,08: $ 9,47/ $12,36¢
Net earnings per Unit (basic and dilut $ 05 $ 08 $ 064 $ 03 $ 031 $ 04z $ 03¢ $ 0.4z
Weighted average common units outstant 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24( 28,24(
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Dorchester Minerals Acquisition LP, an Oklahomaitéed partnershij
Dorchester Minerals Acquisition GP, Inc., an Oklatzocorporatiot
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated February 26, 20@®mpanying the consolidated financial statemamtisinternal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Dorcleedflinerals, L.P. on Form 10-K for the year endest@&nber 31, 2008. We hereby consent
to the incorporation by reference of said repartthe Registration Statement of Dorchester Mindrdbs on Form S-4 (File No. 333-124544).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 26, 2009



Exhibit 23.2

C ALHOUN , B LAIR & A SSOCIATES
P ETROLEUM C ONSULTANTS
4625 GREENVILLE A VENUE, SuiTe 102
D ALLAS , T EXAS 75206
(214)-522-4925
F AcsIMILE : (214) 346-0310
RGBLAIR@SWBELL.NET

February 6, 2009

Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, TX 75219

Gentlemen:

As independent petroleum consultants, we herebgerdrio the incorporation by reference in the Regfisn Statement on Form4s¢No.
333-124544) of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of ouimeates of reserves, included in this Annual ReparForm 10K, and to all references to ¢
firm included in this Annual Report.

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

/ s/ RoBeERTG. BLAR, P.E.
Robert G. Blair, P.E
Presiden




Exhibit 23.3
Hiededleston ¢ Co., Tne,
Aetrederess el “-frrw'ifr?wf .r-".:.rr.r T
1 H ousTONC ENTER

1221 Mc K INNEY , SuITE 3700
H ousTon, T EXAs 77010

PHONE (713) 209-1100 <« FAX (713) 752-0828
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS

Huddleston & Co., Inc. does hereby consent torntherporation by reference in the Registration $tatat on Form S-4 (No. 333-124544) of
Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estimates of resgrincluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-Ad & all references to our firm included
in this Annual Report.

HUDDLESTON & CO., INC.

/sl Gregory S. Floyd, P.1
By: Gregory S. Floyd, P.E
Vice Presiden

Houston, Texas
February 10, 2009



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, William Casey McManemin, certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15¢ 15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemil
Date: February 26, 20( Chief Executive Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, H.C. Allen, Jr., certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15¢ 15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.
Date: February 26, 20( Chief Financial Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiorchester Minerals, L.P., (the “Partnership”)eorm 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 (the “Report”), each of the usigaed officers of Dorchester Minerals ManagemeRtLE&C, General Partner of
Dorchester Minerals Management LP, General Padhttre Partnership, hereby certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m «
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Partnershig

/s/ William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemil

Date: February 26, 20( Chief Executive Office
Date: February 26, 2009 /sl H.C. Allen, Jr
H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Office



